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VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

CORPORATION- JSC I ndependence - Freedom - Happiness
Number: 252/HHVN-VP Hanoi, March 7th, 2025

Disclosure of Consolidated Financial
Statements of 2024

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF 2024

To: Hanoi Stock Exchange

According to the provisions of Clause 3, Article 14 of Circular No.
96/2020/TT-BTC dated November 16, 2020, of the Ministry of Finance guiding
information disclosure on the stock market, Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JISC
discloses information on the consolidated financial statements for the fourth
quarter of 2024 to the Hanoi Stock Exchange as follows:

1. Organization name:

- Stock code: MVN

Address: No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai, Dong Da, Hanoi
Contact phone number /Tel: 024.35770825

Email: cbtt@vimc.co

Website: vimc.co
2. Information disclosure content:
- Consolidated Financial Statement of 2024

O Separatefinancial statements (Listed organizations have no subsidiaries,
and the superior accounting unit has affiliated units);

M Consolidated financial statements (Listed organization with

subsidiaries);

O Consolidated financia statements (Listed organizations have their own
accounting units and accounting apparatus.

- Cases that require explanation :

+ The auditing organization gave an opinion other than an unqualified
opinion on the financial statements (for the audited financia statementsin 2023):

LIYes OONo
Explanatory document in case of integration :
OYes ONo



+ The difference between pre- and post-audit profit in the reporting periodis
5 % or more, changing from loss to profit or vice versa (for audited financial
statementsin 2023):

OYes ONo

Explanatory document in case of integration :
OYes ONo

+ Profit after corporate income tax in the business results report of the
reporting period changes by 10% or more compared to the same period report of
the previous year :

MYes CONo
Explanatory document in case of integration :
OYes ONo

+ Profit after tax in the reporting period is aloss, changing from profit in the
same period of the previous year to loss in this period or vice versa :

OYes CONo
Explanatory document in case of integration :
OYes CONo

This information has been published on the VIMC's website on March 7th,
2025 at vimc.co.

We hereby commit that the information published above istrue and take full
legal responsibility for the content of the published information.

Attached documents:

- Consolidated financial statements of 2024,

- Document explaining the profit difference on the consolidated financial
statements of 2024 (Document No. 242/HHVN-TCKT dated March, 6th 2025);

- Document explaining the exceptions and retroactive adjustments in
audited on the consolidated financial statements of 2024 (Document No.
241/HHVN-TCKT dated March, 6th 2025).

Recipient:

- Asabove;

- Board of Directors,

- Board of Supervisors,

- CEG;

- Person in charge of CG;

- Financial Accounting Dept;
- Save: Office, L 01.

Tran Tuan Hali
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
™o, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuang Mai Ward, Dong Da Districs, Hanoi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company (hereinafter
referred 1o as “the Corporation”) presents this report together with its Consolidated Financial Statements
fior the fizeal vear ended as at 31 December 2024,

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT, BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

Members of the Board of Management, the Board of General Directors and the Board of Supervisors
of the Corporation who held office during the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the
date of this report are a3 follows:

Boartd of Management

Mr. Le Anh Son Chairman

Mr. Mguyen Canh Tinh Member

Mr. Do Tien Duc Member

Mr. Nguyen Dinh Chung Member

Mr. Do Hung Dueng Member

Bogrd of General Direciors

Mr. Nguyen Canh Tinh General Directo

Mr. Pham Anh Tuan Deputy General Director

Mr. Le Quang Trung Deputy General Director

Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Anh Deputy General Director
Legal Representative

The legsl representative of the Corporation for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 and to the
date of this report is Mr. Npuyen Canh Tinh - General Director.

Board of Su rs

Mr. Loong Diinh Minh Chiel Supervisor

Ms. Phan Thi Nhi Ha Member

Mr. Pham Cao Nhue Member

Chi tani

Mr. Le Duy Duong Head of Finance and Accounting Department
AUDITORS

The auditors ef UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited have audited the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Corporation for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024,

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Beard of General Directors confirms that, there have been no significant events ocourring after

the balance sheet date which would require adjustments to or disclosures 1o be made in the
Consofidated Financial Statements.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC
Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONT'D)

THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of General Directors of the Corperation & responsible for preparing the annual
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
a5 of 31 December 2024, consolidated results of operations and consolidated cash flows of the
Corperation for the year ended 31 December 2024, In preparing these consolidsted financial
statements, the Board of General Directors is required fo:

» Design and implement an effective miernal control system 1o mitigate the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud or errors in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

s Comply with Viemamesse sccounting standards, the Vietnamese accounting sysiem for
enterprises and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting;

= Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

» Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable nd prudent;

s State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to &ny material
departurcs disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements;

= Prepare the consolidated financial stetements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
ta presume that the Corporation will continue its operation.

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept,
which discloses, with reascnable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Corporation and
to ensure that the consolidated finencial statements comply with Vietnamese accounting standards,
the Vietnamese Corporate accounting system and the relevant statutory requirements. It is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Bosrd of General Directors confirms that the Corporation has complied with the above
requirements in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of General Direciors has approved the attached Consolidated Financial Statements. These
statements provide a true and fair view, in oll meterial respects, of the consolidaed financial
position of the Corporation as at 31 December 2024, as well as its consclidated income statement
and its consoclidated cash flow for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024, in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Viemamese Corporate Accounting System and related legal
regulations on the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Board of Genersl Directors commits that the Company has fully complied with its regulatory
disclosure oblizgations as stipufated in Circular No. 962020/TT-BTC dated 16 November 2020
issued by the Ministry of Finance on information disclosure in the securities market; Decree No.
155/2020/ND-CP dated 31 December 2020 issued by the Government and Circular No.
12020/ TT-BTC dated 31 December 2020 issued by the Ministry of Finance, which provide

on bohalf of Board of General Directors,
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Uw AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED

No: 1442025/ UHY- BCKT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT
O the Consolidated Financial Statements of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company
For the fiscal year ended as ai 31 December 2024

To:  Shareholders, Board of General Directors and Doard of Management
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company

We have audited the sccompanying Comsolidated Financial Statements of Victnam Maritime
Corporation — Joint Stock Company (hereinafer referred to s “the Corporation™) as prepared on 03
March 2025 and set out on page 10 to 68, which compriss the Consolidated Balance sheet as at 1]
December 2024, the Consclidated Income Starement, the Consalidated Cash Flow Statement for the
fiscal year then ended and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Board of General Directors' responsibility

The Board of General Directors of the Corparation is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the Consolidated Financizl Statements in sccordance with the Vietnamess
Accounting Standards, Viemamese Corporate Accounting System and related legel regulations on
the prepararion and presentation of Consclidsted Financial Statements and for such internal control
a5 the Bogrd of General Directars determines necessary to ensurc that the Consolidated Financis]
Statements are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or errer.

Aunditors® responsibility

Ower responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our
sudit. We conducted eur audit in sceordance with Vietnamese Standards on Aoditing. Thosc
standards require that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the sudit to obtain
reasonable assurnnce shout whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatiement.

An audit invelves performing procedures o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the Consolidated Financial Statements, The selected procedures depend on the suditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatemcnt of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. When assessing these risks, the avditor considers the
Coporation’s internal contro] relevant o the true and fair preparation and fair presentation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropricte [or the
actua] situation, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Coporation's internal control. The avdit also includes evalusting the appropriateness of accounting
policiea used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of General
Directars, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified opinion,

agd Office Lih Fleaan, BF Tomer,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (CONT I}

Basis for Qualified Opinion
L At Port of Hai Phong Jeint Stock Company — A subsidiary of the Corporation [“Hai
Phong Port")

As of 31 December 2024, Hai Phong Port recognized assats related to Berths No. 04 and No. 05 and
the Chua Ve Port container yard under the item "Tangible Fixed Asscts" (code 221) on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. These assets had a total historical cost of YND 272.7 billion and a net
carrving amount of VNI 142,14 billion, The sources of funding for these assets are recorded under
"Leng-term Borrowings and Finance Lease Lishilities” (code 338) on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet, with a corresponding value of VIND 342.1 billion. These assets belong to Phase 11 of the Hai
Phong Port Renovation and Upgrading Project, which was invested by Ministry of Transport using
Japanese ODA loans and the Government’s counterpart funding.

At the request of the Ministry of Finance, Hai Phong Port has temporarily remitied certain amounts
related to the aforementioned project into the State Budget, these include: Depreciation of asscis
relsted to Berths No. 04 and No. 05 and the Chua Ve Port container yard for the period from 2014 to
31 December 2018, totaling VND 44.8 billion, provisionally aceruwed interest expenses on loans
amounting to YIND 149.3 billion.

In accordance with Resolution Mo, TI/NQ-CHP dated 12 June 2020 of the Board of Directors, Hai
Phong Port hes suspended depreciation and ceased recognizing inferest expenses from 1 lanuary
2020 for assets related to Berths No. 04 and No, 05 and the Chua Ve Port container yard, pending
official approval of the management plan for these assets,

On § June 2023, the Company issued Document No. 1674/CHP-TCKT to the Ministry of Transport,
proposing the continued assignment of Hai Phong Port to manage and operate Berths No. 04 and
Ma. 05 and the Chua Ve Port container vard, in line with the provisions of Document Ne. 2313/ TTg-
KETN dated 25 December 2013 issued by the Prime Minister.

On 28 September 2023, the Ministry of Transport issued Document No. 10882 BGTVI-TC 1o the
Ministry of Finance for consultation on the drafi Decree regulating the managecmend, use, and
exploitation of maritime infrastructure assets (intended to replace Decree Me. 43/2018/ND-CP dated
12 March 2018). In this document, the Ministry of Trensport propesed adding transitional provisions
io the Decree to ensare that, if the proposal is approved, it would establish a management framework
for these assets, meaning that Berths No.4 and Berths No.5 at Chua Ve Port would be transferred to
Hai "hong Port for managernent and operation (ot for lease).

On 24 December 2024, the Government Office issued Notification No, 569/TB-VPCP regarding the
eonclusions on feedback and explanations from Govemment Members conceming the Decree on the
mansgement, use, and exploitation of inland waterway infrastruchure assels. Accordingly, the
Deputy Prime Minisier agreed that the Decree should not include provisions for tansitional
handling of maritime infrastructure assets formed from state capital and assigned the Minisiry of
Transport and the Ministry of Finance to urgently report an a handling plan.

Lipon official approval from the relevant authorities regarding the management and operation plan
for Berths No.4 and Berths No.5, the Chua Ve Port container yard, and the equipment package, Hai
Phong Port will be responsible for updating the financial report data accordingly.

Oin 27 December 2024, pursuant to Resolution No. 168/NQ-CHP, the Board of Management of Hai
Phong Port approved the resumption of depreciation for Berths No.4 and Berths No.3, and the Chua
Ve Port container yard, as proposed by the General Director of Hai Phong Port in Report Mo.
ARE2/CHP-TCKT dated 25 December 2024,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT {(CONT'D)
Basis for QJualificd Opinion (Cont’d)

As of the issuance date of this audit repart, there has been no decision from the state management
authorities regarding the management framework for Berths No.4 and Berths No.5 and the Chua Ve
Port container yard of Hai Phong Port. Therefore, we do not have sufficient basis to determine the
costs related to the use of Berths No. 04, 05, and the container yard at Chua Ve Port of Hai Phong
Port from 01 January 2020 to 31 December 2024,

2. Additionally, the Ministry of Finance also requested to a re-examination of the equitization of Hai
Phong Port (given that the final settlement documents of the value of State capital at the time: of
equitization of the Company have not been approved by the relevant authorities), When there is the
official appreval of the equitization settlement of the competent authority about loans and repayment
plans, the Financial Statements of Hai Fhong Part will be adjusted (if applicable).

We have not been able to obtaint the necessary documents to assess the impact of all the above
issues on the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements (attached)

2 Af Bien Dong Shipping Company Limited— A subsidiary of the Corporation(Bien Dong)

Differences berween the loan principal balance and the loan payable to Vietnam Shipbuilding
Finance Compary LimiediVFC]

According to the independent confirmation letter received fom VEC, the recorded outsianding loan
principal and interest receivable from Bien Dong Shipping One-Member Limited Lisbility Company
{(“Bien Dong™) related to the 1730 TEU V22 Commainer Ship Project are higher than the amounts
recorded in Bien Dong’s books. As of 1 January 2024, these amounts were USD 18,667,314.77 and
USD 59,208,393.37, respectively, and as of 31 December 2024, they were USD 28,667,314.77 and
USD 63,541,824.47, respectively.

The discrepancy arises because Bien Dang transferred the principal debt and accrued loan interest
payable to VFC to Bach Dang Shipbuilding One-Member Limited Liability Company (Bach Dang)
aceording to the handover minuies signed on 5 August 2015, with Bach Dang,

Through the audit procedures performed, we were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence regarding the opening balance, transactions incurred during the period, and the closing
balance of these loan liabilities 2nd interest expenses payable. Therefore, we are unablc to determine
whether any adjustments are necessary for these figures and the potential impact, if any, on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements (refer to Notes No. 20 and No. 24).

The recognition of differences between the principal debt and interest payable to credit institutions
and the debt amount the Company avsumed from Fietnam Debt and Asser Trading Corporation
(DATC)

Before 2017, Rien Dong applied the guidance from Official Letter No, 751/BTC-TCDN dated 17
September 2015, issned by the Ministry of Finance (Official Letter 751) regarding the accounting
treatment of the difference between the book value of debt and the assumed debt value with DATC.
Accordingly, the differeace between the debt amount assumed from DATC and the principal debt
and interest payable to credit institutions was recorded as an increase in the State 's equity in Bien
Dong,.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D)

Basis for Qualified Opinion (Cant’d)

From 2018 to 2021, Bien Dong transitioned to epplying the regulations of the Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System, under which the difference between the amount owed to DATC and the
principal and interest payable to credit institutions was recorded in the Income Statement for the
year,

From 2022 to 2023, Bien Dong applied the guidance set out in Circular No. 46/2021/TT-BTC dated
23 June 2021, Official Dispatch No. 75 /BTC-TCDN dated 17 September 17 2013, Official Letter
No. 5883/BTC-TCON dated 8 May 2017, and Official Letter No. [440WBTC-TCDN dated 8
February 2021, issued by the Minitiry of Finance. Accordingly, the difference between the amount
owed to DATC and the principal and inserest payable 1o credit institufions was recorded as an
increase in the value of the State "s equity in Bien Dong.

If Bien Dong consistently applies the regulations of the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System
in recording these amounts, then in the Consolidsted Balance Sheet as ot 1 January 2024, the item
“Differences upon asset revaluation” (Code 416) decreases while the item “Undistributed eamings™
(Code 421) increases by VND 2,104.86 billion. As at 31 December 2024, the item “Differences
upon asset revaluation™ (Code 416) decreases and the Item “Undistributed earnings” (Code 421)
increases by WND 2,166.26 billion accordingly.

Qualified Opinion

In cur opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a trus and fair view, in all material respects,
of the consolidated financial positian of Vietmam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company as at
11 December 2024, its consolidated operating results and its cash flows for the year then ended in
aceordance with the Viemamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System

and the related legal resulations on the preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial
Sietements,

Emphasis of Matters
We draw attention to the following matters disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements:

- In Note 1.6 — Corporation structure: The financial statements of Quy Nhen Port Joint Stock
Company, a subsidiary of the Corporation, have been consolidsted into the Corporation’s
consolidated financial statements, The consolidated financial statements of the Corparation
reflect the investment value in this subsidiary as VND 415.46 billion. This is the amount the
Corporation has reimbursed to Hop Thanh [nvestment and Mineral Joint Stock Company
{*Hop Thanh™) in accordance with the terms of the share ownership transfer agreement.

As of 31 December 2024, the Corporation and Hop Thanh are still in the process of
discussions and evaluations regarding the legal investment benefits of Hop Thanh during their
participation in Chuy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company.

- InNote 2.1 — Basis for preparing Censolidated Financial Statements: The financial statements
of certain subsidiaries end mssociates, which have been consolidated into the Corporation’s
Consolidated Financial Statements, contain significant uncertainties that raise substantial
doubt shout the ability of these companies to continue #s going concerns. The Financial
Statementz of these entities have been prepared and presented based on the assumpticn of
EOITIE CONCETT,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFPORT (CONT I

Emphasis of Matter (Cont"d)

- In MNote 11 — Financial Investments, Saigon Port Joint Stock Company (Saigon Port), a
subsidiary of the Corporation, has recorded an investment in the form of contributed capital
hy asscts, specifically a 600-metre-long wharf (K6, K7, K&, K9, and K10} at Nha Rong -
Khanh Hoi Port, into Ngoe Vien Dong Investment and Development Company Limited
(*Ngoc Vien Dong Company™) with & contributed capital value of VND 300,001,000,000
{equivalent to a 5.6% ownership interest). Saigon Port has not been able 1o obtain the
financial statements of Wgoc Vien Dong Company from 2021 to the date. However, the
contributed assets, eomprising the over 600-metre-long wharf from K6 to K10 at the Nha
Rong - Khanh Hoi area, remain under the menagement, operation, and commercial use by the
Company. Ngoc Vien Dong Company has committed to bearing all costs related 10 the
management and land use obligations with the State, as stipulated in the agreement dated 31
August 2017 between Ngoe Vien Dong Company and Saigon Port. The Board of General
Directors of the Corporation assesses that this investment has not suffered any impairmant.

- As presented in Note 17 — Construction in Progress, the investment and construction project of
Cai Cui Port Phase [ commenced in 2002 with an initial estimated investment of VIND 230.3
billicn. The investment and construction project of Cai Cui Part Phase I1 began in 2009 with
an initial estimated investment of VIND 8228 billion. The implementation of these two
projects has exceeded the initially timline and remains incomplete. Can The Port Joint Stock
Company, & subsidiary of the Corpaoration, is continuing te invest in order to complete and put
the project components into operation for business activities,

- Ag presented in Note 19 — Taxes and other payables to the State:

+ Saigon Port has temporarily estimated the remaining land rental fees payable for the Nha
Rong - Khanh Hoi Port area up to the time the Company signed an agreement with Ngoe
Vien Dong Urban Development Investment Company Limited (Ngoe Vien Dong - the
investor of the Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port Project) under Investment Policy Decision No.
6815/QD-UBND dated 29 December 20186, issued by the Feople's Committee of Ho Chi
Minh City. As of the date of the consolidated financial statements, Saigon Port 15
continuing to work with the tax authorities to determine the basis for the land rental and
land tex obligations.

+ Saigon Port has made temporary payments for land rental 2nd land rax for the period from
2015 to 2020 at Ten Thuan 1 and Tan Thuan 2 Ports (Tan Thuan Deng), as per the
notification from the District 7 Tax Department of Ho Chi Minh City. As of the date of
the consolidated financial statemients, the Company is continuing to liase with the Distriet
7 Tax Department of Ho Chi Minh City and relevant authorities to determine the basis for
these land rental obligations.

- As presented in Mote 22 (3) and 22 (4) — Other Payables: Saigon Port has received capital
advances from ithe State Budget and Ngoe Vien Dong Urban Development Investment
Company Limited to invest in the construction project of Saigon Port — Hiep Phuos, which is
managed by Saigon Hiep Phuoe Port Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary of Saigon Port, As of
now, this project remains] under construction.

- In Note 22{6) — Other Payables and Note 24{1) — Borrowings and Finance Leases, as of now,
the Hau Gisng Shipyard Project of Hau Giang Maritime Services One Member Limited
Liability Company has been permanently discomtinued according to Official Letter No.
403/TTe-KTN dated 29 March 2012 from the Prime Minister. Regarding the funding used for
this project, the Company is recognizing restructuring interest hased on Resolution 107/MNQ-
CP dated 10 October 2017 of the Government. However, the lenders/advance providers,
including Vietnam Shipbuilding Finance Une Member Limited Liability Company (VFC) and
Vietmam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC), have not vet restructured the debt as per
the aforementioned resolution.



INDEPERDENT AUDITORS® REPORT (CONTIN

Emphasis of Matter (Cont"d)

= In Note 24 {2) - Borrowmgs and Finance Leases and Mote T — Loan Receivables: As of 31
December 2024, the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation reflect a loan
receivable from SP-PSA International Port Co., Ltd ("SP-PSA") amounting to LISTy 4,950,000
(&l the Parent Company - the Corporation) and USD 11,880,000 {at Saigon Port). At the same
time, the financial statements alse refléct o loan payable to PSA Viemom Pie., Lid ("PSA
Viewmam") for the same amounts under the Shareholder Loan Agreement datéd 26 August
2008, corresponding to a capital contribution ratic of 15% for the Corporation and 36% for
Stigon Port al SP-PSA Intemational Port Co., Lid. As of the preparation date of the
consolidatad financial statements, the Corporation and Szigon Port are still in discussions with
the relevant parties to finalize the contract addendum and the basis for calculating the mterest
receivable and pavable accordingly.

- As slated in Note 37.3 — Other Infarmation, aceording to Decree No. | 2602010 TND-CP daged
16 Movember 2017 of the Government on the conversion of state-owned enterprises and one-
member limited Hability companies with 100% state-owned charter capital into joint-stock
companies, at the time of officially converting info a joint-stock company, the Corporation is
required to finalize taxes, obligaticns payable to the State budget with the lax authorities, and
submit the approval request to the stile ownership representative agency regarding the value
of state capital at the time of official conversion. Additionally, the Corporation must sefile the
procesds from eguitization, pay for cmployes severance benefits, and cover equitization-
related expenses. The Corporaticn has completed tax finalization. For the remaining matters,
the Corporation has completed the documentation and is awaiting approval from the
competent authorities. Therefore, the figures in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements may change based on the apinions of the relevant authorities

Sl ngNhin Trinh Thi Trang
Deputy General Drector Aunditor
Auditor’s Practicing Certificate Auditor’s Practicing Certificate
Mo 3e60-2021-112-1 Mo 4061-2022-112-1
Fow el an hehalf of
UHY AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED
Hanci (3 March 2023
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFPORATION = J50

Ma.1 Das Dy Anh, Phuong Mai ward,

Form Mo, B 01 = DNMAN

Far the fiscal year

Dong Da District, Hanei ended 31/12/2024
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As ar 31 Devembar 2024
ASSETS Code MNote 31122024 01012024
(Adjusted)
YN VNI
CURRENT ASSETS 100 13,250,276,250,627 11,963,612,942,094
Cash and cash equivalents e 4 3255012, 146,283 2,771,448,217,598
Cash 111 1,BA7,525,705,153 1,522,178,429,592
Cash equivalents 112 1.387.4856,350,900 1,249,260, 788,006
Shari-term invesiments 120 5,138,580.313.941 5,276,990.271,624
Held-to-maturity mvestments 123 11 5, 138,580,323 4] 5.276,990271, 625
Current aceounts receivable 130 A 60T ITS66R.2TT 2. 733,306, 403,113
Shorl-term trade receivables 131 5 1,744 2659 580 R2R 1,503,172,355, 5337
Short-term advances to suppliers 132 & 904.476,701,248 T23,497,121,304
Shori-term loan recenvables 135 7 203 AR, 0O 0 65,212,000 000
Oither shoan-term receivables 136 B 1,114,08B1,771,535 THI, 375,660,069
Provision for short-term doubeful debts 137 9 (363,723,523,135) (346,211,562 508)
Shortage of g3sets awaiting resolution 139 4,242 828,801 4,252 828 801
Inventories 148 10 485,064,150,094 493,411,636,7460
Inventories 141 GE9,383, 741,794 697 865,529 396
Provisiona for devaluation mventaries 149 (204,319,590, 800) (204,453 8592,650)
Other current assets 150 764,243,%61,132 688,456,413,011
Shor-term prepaid expenses 151 16 70, 824,461,633 £8.453,020,088
Valued added tax deductibles 152 545.190,547,000 43%,142,458,714
Taxes and other receivables from the 153 19 139,228,952 499 161 460,054 209
Srate budpet

The accompanying noted are an integral part of these consolidated financial staements 10
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC

Form No. B 01 -DNHN

Mol Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, For the fiscal year
Dong Da District, Hanoi cnded 3171272024
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT'D)

As gt 3T December 2024
ASSETS Code Note 317122024 0112024

[Adjusted)
VND VND
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 17,174,694, 382 362 15.571,815787,190
Long-term receivabbes 210 1,506,052, 730,179 1,123,241,189,041
Long-term trade receivables M5 93,509,714,342 102,843,157,875
Long-term advances to suppliers 212 6 24,653,398, 581 24,653,398.581
Long-term loan receivables 215 7 1,080, T4, 67T 466 BE3,211,680,000
Orther long-tenm receivables 216 8 F0°7,034,939,750 112,569 520,185
Provision for doubtful loag-temm 29 9 - (36,567,700
Fixed assets 220 9.100,520,065,447 0019043 281,010
Tangible fixed assets 231 12 BA01 208,885,120 E296,680,051,503
= Cost 222 29 942 641,030,949 31225381 315244
- Accummaated depreciation 223 (21560832 145,820  [22,028701,283,34])
Finance lease assats 224 13 45,229,712,513 48,144,234 401
- Cogt 225 38,200 437,844 58,200,437 844
- Aceumulated depreciation 226 {13060 725 331) (i, 145,203, 443)
Intangible fixed assets 227 14 633,481 467 814 674 219014, 706
- (st 228 P34 473 120,003 G20 D58, 480,070
= Accumuiated amortization 229 (250061 652, 109 (255, 76D 466,273)
Investment properties 3 1S #17.002,112,653 456,095,448,911
= Ot 231 B0, 560,573,617 799, 763 E48,4 18
- Accumulated depreciation Fis ¥ (384,558 460,9534) (343,668,399,497)
Long-term assets in progress M40 17 3,528,272,052,993 2,514,340,400,174
Long-term work in progress 241 39,141,592,111 38,037,789,457
Long=tenm construction in progress 42 1,489,131,060,882 2.475.402,619,717
Long-term invesiments 250 1,220,497,150,565 2,029,159,377,540
Investments in joint-ventures, msociates 252 11 1,849,307,819.163 1,641,806,308,629
Other long-term investments 253 1 395,522,409,602 411,417,655,941
Provision for long-term finencial 254 1 (24,333,078,200) (24,064,587,030)
investments
Oiber long-term assets 260 402349670, 495 419,956,081,504
Long-lerm prepayments 261 16 373,585,689,251 400,625,003 848
Deferred income tax assels 262 I8, 763,981,244 29,300,157,656
TOTAL ASSETS 70 30,424,970,632,989 ¥7,535,428, 720,184

The cocompanying noted are an imegral part of these canselidaied financial staiemerts 11




VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B 01 - DN/HN

Mol Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward,

For the fiscal year

Dong Da District, Hanol ended 31712/2024
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT'IY)
Ax ar 3] December 2024
RESOURCES Code Mote 3101202024 010172024
(Adjusted )
YN VM
LIABILITIES o0 12,008,273,019,746 12,169,113,677,659
Curreat lnbilities 310 B 000,007 348,524 T417,296,164,057
Shart-term trade payahle 311 1% 1,698,029,979,726 1,172,565, 793,665
Shor-tzrm advances from costomers 312 T7,566,769.514 4],343,194,352
Taxes and other payshbles o the State 313 19 309,516,290, 210 2932 99§ 021,234
budget
Pavable to employses 314 684 237,666 497 S98,141,572, 144
Shari-term accrued expenses 315 20 2,313 842,060,507 2238,687.3685,014
Shori-term unzamed revenws 318 21 25,740 417 3603 19997232312
Oither current payahles 319 22 1,542,820,618,819 1,414,230,911,311
Ehari-term [oan and finance losse 20 24 1,280,673, 985 345 1.496,330,731,754
chligations
Sheort-term provisions 321 25, 100,000,000 16,01 8,000,000
Bonus and welfare funds 322 142,954 559,543 126,985, 322271
Long-term liabilities 330 4,908 281,671,222 4.751,817,513,642
Long-term sccrued expenses 333 20 13,882,563,322 310,815,932
Long-term unearned revenue 336 21 44,734 415,104 44 567,204,284
Oriber lonp-term pavables 33T 2= 2381 236,467,846 2.407,085,935,506
Long-term loans and fimance Iease 338 M 1,200 540 683,841 1,792 DR 5,060,787
ohligations E
Dreferred tax linbilities 4] 23 468,876,542 109 493 573 403,083
OWNER'S EQUITY 41 17,416,697,613,243 1526631 5,051.585
Capital 410 25 17, 416,697,613 243 1556651 5,051,585
Share capital 411 12,005, 850,000,000 12,005,880,000.000
- Cirdingry shares with voring Fights flla J2.005, BED, (0, () I 2,005, 880, 000, (00
Share premism 412 145,029,557 10,945,029 557
Orther capital 414 73,241,144 535 82,963,529 693
Differences upon asset revaluation 416 (3003,637,830471) (3,190,407 830,460)
Exchange rate differences 417 108 499 338 212 40, TG, 738,752
Investment and development funds 418 2,933,165,394,314 2,086,664,356,714
Oeher regenaes 430 L 227 803 Q2 327,504
Undistributed eamings 421 596,828,553 066 (241,969 636,062)
Undirtributed sarmings oocummlared  42]a (T.424 185891, 752) (1404 252 855 370
o the prior year end
- Undfistributed earnings of the current 4215 2021,014.444,518 1 162,313,199307
J‘r:;-mrm:llﬁu interest 420 4,901,883,756,.517 4,571,350,235, 856
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 30,424,970,632,989 27,535,428,729.284

Haroi, 03 March 2025
Preparer Head of Finance and ral Director
pr——

U

¥u Thi Thanh Duyen Le Duy Duong

—=x o
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT

Form No. B 02 — DN/HN
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STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 317127204
Diong Da District, Hanod
CONSOLIDATED [INCOME STATEMENT
For the fiscal year ended 37 Decembar 2024
Ttems Code Note Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Revenue from goods sold and services ] | 27 16,969, 719,071,136  12,520,166,123,213
Fevenue deductions oz 8,470,890,5671 S5 146,652,716
Met revenne from goods sold and 10 16,961,248,180. 468  12,815,019,470,497
services rendered
Cost of goods sold 11 28 14,147,885,979,277  10,412,004,553,703
Gross profit from goods sold and 0 2.813.363,201,188 2,403, 014,876,794
services readered
Financial income 2 29 B56,589,652,356 664,610,287,475
Finaneial expenses 22 an G16,879,085.999 257,553.794,521
- dm which. Tnterest expenses a3 372851 243 087 202,077, 736,231
Profitiloess) in joint-veniures, associates 24 225,015,248 832 153,835,059,153
Selling expenses 25 3 138,313,204 379 138,049,421,642
Gensral and adminiztrative expenses 76 iz 1,343 354,790,920 1,045,493,993,895
Met operating profit 3 1,796,420,018,078 1,780,363 893 364
Oither incoms i1 33 1,435,448,737.979 484,546,885,838
Orther expenses 32 34 75,220,220, 770 139,196,627,975
Profit{loss) from other activities 40 1,356,228,508,209 345,450,257,563
Acepunting profit before tax 1] 3,152 648,526,287 2126014151227
Current corporale income tax expense 51 5456 070,402 800 421,040,443 ,445
Dieferred tax expensai{income) 52 (23,250,630,856) 3,154,567 469
Net profit after tax 60 2520828754343 1,701,819,140.313
Net profit after tax atributable 1o 61 2,021,014, 444 5318 ,162,313.199.317
shareholders of the parent
Net profit after tax of non-controlling 62 608 814,300,525 539,505,940,006
interest
Earning Fer Share W 35 1,683 064
famoi, 03 March 2025
Preparer Head of Finance and veral Director
Accounting Departme e .
':";-"."' T{SHG EDH‘E Y .'
- (x| HANG HA
] )
L e
) *31.- ;
Vu Thi Thanh Duyen LeDuyDuong - S&a 1 en Canh Tinh

The accompanying noted are an integral part of these mﬂ.’lm‘idamd_ﬂn.minf SrareRenis I3




VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT

Form No. B 09— DN/HN

STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 31/12/2024
Dong Da Disirnet, Hanoi
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(T By indirect method)
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
llems Caode Note Year 1024 Year 223
VND VYAD
Cash flows from operating activitics
Profit before tax o1 3,152,648,526,287 2,126,014,151,227
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization of fixed 0z 1,525,135,144,321 1.317,070,939.847
assets and investment properties
Provisions 03 26,680,582,157 (246,955,748, 464)
Foreign exchange (gains)iosses arisen 04 (55,131,068,690) (32.704,482,287)
from revaluation of monctary accounts
Losses/{profits) From investing nctivities 05 (1,308 671,6009,044) {611,684 B52217)
Inferest cxponses 06 372,851,242,087 202.077,736,231
Other adjustmants a7 26,272,308,883 -
Operating profii before changes in e 3,730, 704, 126,001 2,753,826, 764,337
working capital
Increase/decreace in receivables 08 455 843,676,906 196,137,602,837
Incrense/decrease in inventories 10 £,277.984, 948 167, 719,251,349
Increase/deorease in payshles (not 11 (434,232 237,235) (287,772,220,054)
including accrued interest and earporate
income tax payable)
Increase/decrease in prepayments 12 36,070,693,052 Q4 IR3 529075
Imrerest paid 14 (217.231,080,187) (283,278, 03,057)
Comporate income tax paid 15 (569 574,097 308) (377,463,564 339
Oiher cash inflows from opersting 16 32320000 -
activitics
(Hher cash outflows from operating L7 (220,3532,736,659) (197,571,402,253)
sctivitles
Net caxk flows from eperating activiies 20 2,798, 128,629,518 2066041757855
Adjustments for
Purchase and construction of fixed assets 21 (3,090,639,824,854) {2,385.642,111,728)
and other long-term assets
Proceads from disposals of fixed assets 22 846,150,504 680 05, 187,760,339
and other long-term assets
Loans 1o other entities end payments for 23 (B, HS, 556,708, 760) (8,186,708,335,708)
purchase of debt instruments of ather
entities
Callections from borrowers and procesds 24 &, 701,753,928,991] 8745 841 306,984
fram sabe of debt instroments of other
ertities
Equity investments in other enities 25 {332,099,938,458) (2,447,862,450)
Proceeds from sales of nvestments in 26 105,295 848 450 17.585,790,150
ather entities
Irerest and dividends received 27 368,021,672,950 471,447,342,944
Net cash fTows from investing activities I (2, 200,0 74,606,952) {1,244, 736,019 459)

The aecompanying noted are ow integral pard of these consolidated financial staismens 14
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION - JOINT

STOCK COMPANY
Mool Dao Duy Anh, Phueng bMai ward,
Donge Da District, Hanoi

Form Mo, B 09—

DN/HN
For the fizcal vear
ended 3171272024

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONT'T)

(By indirect methad)
For the flscal year ended 31 Decenmbear 2024
[tems Code MNote Year 2024 Year 2023
WD VD

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from bomowings 33 470,458 442,708 352,321 414309

Repayments of bomrowings 34 (548,833,154, 504) (557,972,094,1 50

Finance lease principal repayments 35 - -

Dividends and peofits paid 36 (46,326,570,024) (212,268,501,333)
Nt rash flows frome financing activities it (124,661,328 1,820) (A7 010181, 174)
Met incresse/decrease in cash and cash a0 467392, 740,747 403,386,557,212
equivalents
Cash and cash squivalenis af the &l 4 2771 448217598 1,354,234 648,554
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchanpe differences Gl 16,171,187 938 (16,172,988, 16K)
Cash and cash equivalenis af the end of 70 4 3,255,012,146,283 3,771,448217,598
the year

Hamai, 03 March 2025
Preparer Head of Finance and = Director
Accounting ]}Inpn.rm ‘::"'m1mhﬁ
I-I.&HG H.ﬂ-.l
Vu Thi Thanh Deyen Le Duy Duong

The sccompanying noted are an integral part of these comsolidated financial stalements 15
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JOINT Form No, B 09— DNHN
STOCK COMPANY Far the fiscal year
MNo.l Dan Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 31/12/2024

Dong Da Distriet, Hanol

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(These moter are o buegra! part of ard showld be read bt corjuns thor with the eocemparplag finaneial statementis)

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

GENERAL INFORMATION

STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIF

Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company was established under Decision No,
2350/TTg dated 29 March 1995, issued by the Prime Minister. On 29 September 2006, the
Corporation was converted to operate under & Parent Company - Subsidiary Company
model, in accordance with Decision No. 2162006/QD-TTg issued by the Prime Minister.
At the same time, the Prime Minister issued Decision No. 217/2006/QD-TTg on the
establishment of Vietnam Maritime Carporation.

On 25 June 2010, the Prime Minister issued Decision No. 985/QD-TTg approving the
transformation Vietnam Maritime Corporation into a onc-member limited lability company
owned by tha State.

As part of the restructring project of Vietnam Maritime Corporation, approved by the Prime
Minister, the Corporation cared out financizl settlment and enterprise valuation for
equitization at 31 December 2016, On 08 December 2017, the Minister of Transport issued
Decision No. 3402/QD-BGTVT, amoucing the enterprise value for the equitization of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Parent Company. On 20 June 2018, the Prime Minister
iszued Decision No. 751/QD-TTg, approving the equitization plan for the Corporation. On

18 June 2020, the State Capital Menagement Commitiee at Enterpriscs issued a Decision No.

277/QF-UBQLYV, adjusting the charter capital scale and structure based on the results of the
initial public offering of Vietnam Maritime Corporation. The Corporation successfully held
the first General Meeting of Shareholders on 13 August 2020 and officially ransitioned into
a Joint Stock Company on 18 August 2020,

The Corporation operates under the Business Registration Centificate No. 0100104595 first
issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Hanoi City on 07 Tuly 2010, As of
18 August 2020, the Corporation was issued its seventh Business Registration Certificate,
officially transitioning Joint Stock Company with a cheter capital of VND
12,005,880,000,000.

The Corporation’s headquarters is located at Ocean Park Building, No. | Dao Duy Anh,
Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS FIELD

The Corporation's main business activities include constal and ocean freight transportation,
inland waterway and road transportation, and supporting services related to transportation;
port and inland waterway terminal operations; agency services, freight forwarding, logistics,
warchousing, and storage of goods, as well as debt trading,

NORMAL PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS CYCLES

The Corperation’s normal business cycle is within 12 menths.

STATEMENT OF COMPARABILITY IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Comparative figures are based on the audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the
finencial year ended 31 December 2023 and are fully comparable.

It
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STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal vear
Mo, 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 31/12/2024
Dong Dxa District, Hanod

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These noter are an flegral port of and showld be read in oonfarction wilh the acoompanying fnanclal rireements)

1.
1.5
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GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT'D

CORPORATION'S STRUCTURE

The Corpocation has subsidiaries whose financial smtements are consclidated as of 31
December 2024, including;

Mame of subsidiaries

Wiet Mam Chocan
Shipping Agence
Corporation
Vietnam Ocean
Shipping J5C

VIMC Logistics I5C
Cam Ranh Pori JSC

Vinaship JSC
Port of Hai Fhong J5C

Mghe Tinh Port J5C
Saigon Port I1SC

Da Wang Port JSC
iemam Container
Operation Co,Lid
Wiemam Hi-Tech
Transporiation Co..Lid
Bien Dong Shipping
Co, Ld

(Cai Lan Port Investment
BC

Hau Giang Maritime
Service One Member
Co.Lid

Can Tho Port J5C

Yinalines Wha Trang JSC
Dy WNhen Port J5C (i)

Cam Ranh Port Maritime
Service JSC

Dinty Vu Port Ifvestment
and Development J5C
Hai Phong Port Tugboat
and Transport 1SC

Hoang Diea Port One
Member Co. Ltd

Hai Phong Port Medical
Center One Member
Co.Lid

Haiphong Port Operations
And Engineering Training
Oine Member Co, LAd

Place of
eatablishment
and operation
Ho Chi Minh
Hai Phong City

Ha MNea Ciry
Khanh Hea

Hai Phong Ciry
Hai Phoag City

Mghe An
Ho Chi Minh

Da Mang City
Hai Fhong City

Ha Mei City
Ha Mot City
Cruang Ninh

Hau Gizng

Can Tho City

Khanh Hoa
Binh Dinh

Khanh Hoa

Hai Phong City
Hai Phong City
Hai Phong City
Hai Phong City

Hai Phong City

Bate of
imferes

51.05%

H1.00%,

53.50%
BO.S0%

51.00%
P2 56%

§1.00%
65.45%

75.00%
B0.00%

56.00%
100.00%
56.58%
100.00%

20.01%

51.79%
75.01%

41.26%
qa7.21%
55.54%
91.56%

92.56%

52.560%

Eate of
volting

righis
51.05%
51.00%

60.59%%
80.90%

51.00%
92 56%

51.00%
65.45%

75.00%:
60.00%

56.00%%
1 06 005
56.58%

100.00%

92.01%

91.79%
7501%

51,004
51.00%
60.00%
100.00%

100,00 %0

100,00%

Principal activities

Maritime servics

Sea transport service

Maritime service
Seaport and terminal
hamedling service
Sea wansport service
Senport and termimal
handling service
Seaport and rerminal
handling service
Seaport and terminal
handling service
Beaport service

Sea transport service

Seaport and terminal
handling service
Sen transport service

Seaport and terminal
handling sérvice
Seaport and terrminal
handling service

Seaport and terminal
handling service
Sea transport service
Seaport and terminal
handling service
Maritime service

Seaport and terminal
handling service
Maritime scrvice
Seaport and terminal
handling service
Dich vy khém chita
bénh

Health care servioe

17
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT Form No. B 09 — DN/HN

ETOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year
Wo.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 3112/2024
Dong De District, Hamoi

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED Fm.;ﬂfm STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Thase marer are am integrod part af oad showld be read (n confenction witk the accamprning Srarcial ratomens)

Mo Name of subsidiaries Flace of Rate of Rateof Principal aetivities

establishment  interes  voling
and aperation righis

24 Sal Gon Logistics J8C Ho Chi Minh 48,52%  74.13% Maritime service

25 Sai Gon Hiep Phuoc Port  Ho Chi Minh 59.26%  90.54% Seaport and terminal
IsC handling service

26 Sai Gon Port Techical Ho Chi Minh 41.44% 6331% Maritime service
Service Commercial J3C

27 Sai Gron Part Maritime Ho Chi Minh 33.38% 51.00% Maritime service
Service and Trasport JSC

28 Sai Gon Port Stevedoring ~ Ho Chi Minh 34.51%  52.71% Maritima service
and Senvice IsC

29 VOSCO Manpower Supply  Hai Phong City 51.00%  51.00% Supply manpower
One Member Co.Lid

30 Hau Gizng Port Service Hau Giang 51.00%  51.00% Marnitime service
JEC

31 Vinaship Maritime Service  Hal Phong City 51.00%  51.00% Mantime service
Co,.Ltd

32 Quy Nhon Port Logistics  Quy Nhon 75.01%  75.01% Maritime service
Services Co. Lid

33 VIMC Container Ha Mai 00.56%  99.56% Seaportand terminal
Transport 15C (VIMC handling service
Lines) {ii)

34 Vietnam maritime TP. Hai Phing 51.00%  50.55% Maritime service
davelopment joint stock
company

35 VIMC Dinh VuPort JSC ~ Hai Phong City  51.00%  50.55% Scaport and terminal

handling service

(i} In September 2015, the Corporation divested its capital in Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company
(ONF) under a share transfer contract with Hop Thanh Investment and Mineral Joimt Stock
Company (Hop Thanh). On 27 May 2019, following the Government Inspectorate’s eonclusion on
the equitization of QNP, the directive of the Permanent Deputy Prime Minister, and guidance from
competent authorities, the Corporation signed contract No. 012019/ VNL-HT/CGCP with Hop
Thanh regerding the transfer of ownership of QNP shares. On 29 May 2019, the transfer of
pwnership of 30,312,262 shares, equivalent to 75.01% of QNP’s charter capital, to the Corporation
was executed through the Victnam Securities Depository.

According to the contract, the total transfer value includes (1) the tramsfer amount and (2) the
investor’s legitimate interests, as follows:

- The transfer amount (1) was VND 415,156,027, 500. This amount was paid by the
Corporation to Hop Thanh on 27 May 2019 and was temperarily recorded as an investment
in QNP on the date of ownership transfer.

- The investor's legitimate interests {2) represent the legal benefits that Hop Thanh is entitled
to during its investment, management, and operational period. The two parties agreed that
Hop Thanh would provide the basis and methodology for determining these benefits, which
the Corporation would review and submit to the competent authorities for approval.

1E
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JOINT Form No. B 09 — DNAIN
STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year
Mol Dao Duy Anh, Phoong Mat ward, ended 31/12/2024

Dong D Distriet, Hanoi

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
(Thare notes are an iaregrod part i ansd sl be reed fn cogumction w it the aocompanping finameia) shorewen)

¥; GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT'D)
15 CORPORATION'S STRUCTURE (CONT'D)

As at 3] December 2024, the parties have not yet determined the value (2) of the legal
benefits that Hop Thanh is entitled during the investment, management and operation
period. Therefore, the Corporation has not yet paid this amount to Hep Thanh and the
investment value has not been recorded in the separate financial stalcments

(ii) The company was newly established in the year according to the Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 0110710348 issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and [nvesiment
on 10 May 2024, with a charter capital of YND 1,015,000,000,(00. As of 31 December
2024, all partizs have completed their capital eontributions as per the business rogistration.

2. BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL YEAR

1 BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 of the
Corperation have been propared based on the consolidstion of the separate financial
statements of the Corporation and the financial statements of its subsidiaries under the
Corporation’s control (the Subsidiaries), which have been prepared for the financial year
ended 31 December 2024 Control is achicved when the Corporation has the ability to
govern the financial and operational policies of the investes companies to obtain benefits
from their activities,

The financial statements of the subsidiaries apply accounting pelicies consistent with those
of the Corperation. Whare necessary, the financial statements of the subsidiaries arc
adjusted to ensure consistency in the accounting policies applied by the Corporation and its
suhsidiaries. The financial statements of some subsidiaries and associates, including Bren
Dong Shipping One Member Limited Liability Company, Cai Lan Port Investment Jnint
Stock Company, Hau Giang Meritime Services One Member Limited Liability Company,
Vinalines NWha Trang Joint Stock Company, and Cai Mep International Fort Limited
Liability Company, contain events indicating the presence of significant uncertaimty, leadimg
to substantial doubt about their ability to continue as a godng concern. These concerns arise
from factors such as significant accomulated losses and short-term liabilities exceeding
short-term assets. However, the financial statements of these companies have been prepared
under the going concem assumption for the purpose of consolidation into the Carperation's
consclidated financial statements. The Corporation’s Board of General Directors belicves
that, given the oagoing aggressive restructuring of loan debts and the highly positive
developments in the maritime transportation market, the assumption of going concem for
the preparation of these companics' financial statements is appropriaie.

Major balances, income, and expenscs, including unrealized gains or losses arising from
intra-group transactions, have been eliminated in the consolidation procsss.

Non-controlling interests represeat the portion of profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries

that are not held by the Corporation. These are presented separately in the consolidated
income statement and within the equity section of the consolidated balance sheet.
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STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal vear
to.l Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 31/12/2024
Dong Da District, Hanoi

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These nafer are an integral part of'ond should be read in confrmction with the accompaning fnancial satemznts)

L.l

13

32

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL YEAR (CONT"DY)

APPLICABLE STANDARDS AND ACCOUNTING FOLICES

The Corporation applies Corporate Accounting System issued under the Circalar No.
2007201 /TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 by the Ministry of Finance, which was
amended and supplemented by Cireular No. 532016/ TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 by the
Ministry of Finance and follows Circular No. 2022014/TT-BTC, which provides
guidelines for the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Stalcments.

The Consclidsted Financial Statements are presented in Vietnamese Dong (VND),
following the historical cost principle and in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and related legal regulations on the
preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Carporation begins on 01 January and ends on 31 December. These
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared for financial year ended 31
December 2024,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Corporation in the preparation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements arc as follows:

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with Victmamese
Accounting Standards requires the Board of General Directors to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of liabilities, assets and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date, and the reported amoants of revenues
and expenses during the financial year. Actual operating results may differ from thess
estimates and assumplions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are converied into Vietnamese Dong (VND) st the actual
exchange rate applicable on the transaction date. Exchange rate differences arising from
these fransactions are recognized as revenue or expense during the financial year.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the end of the financial year are
translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the Statement of Financial Position date, &3
follows:

- For assets: The buying rate of the Commercial Hank where the Corporation

regularly eanducts transactions
- For liahilities; The selling rate of the Commereial Bank where the Corporation
regularly conducts transactions.

Exchange rate differonces arising from the revaluation of year-end balances, after offsetting

increases and decreases, are recognized as financial income or financial expenses in the
curment Yoar,
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3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'IY)
13  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash om hand, cash at banks and short-term investments
with an original maturity of no more than three months from the investment date, that are
highl Tiguid, readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and sabject to an insignificant
risk of value flactuation.

34 BUSSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of @ business
combination includes the fair value at the exchange date of the exchanged assets, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the scquirer in exchange for control
over the ncquiree, along with direct costs related to the business combination. Identifiable
aseets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities of the acquiree in & business combination are
recognized at fair value as of the acquisition date.

Goodwill or gain from a bergain purchase is determined as the difference betwesn the cost
of the investment and the fair value of the identifiable net essets of the subsidiary as of the
acquisition date when the parent company gains control over the subsidiary. Any gain from
a bargain purchase (if applicable) is recognized in the comsolidaied income statement.
Goodwill is amertized on & straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of I vears.
Periodically, the Company assesses goodwill impairment in its subsidiaries. If there is
evidence that goodwill impairment exceeds the annual allocation, the impairment ameuat is
recognized immediately in the year it occurs.

35 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Trading securities are initially recognized at cost including the purchase prices plus any
directly atiributable transactica costs (if any), such as brokerape fees, transaction fees,
information service fees, taxcs, levies, and bank's foes. After initial recognition, tradmg
securitics are measured at cost minus any allowance for impairment. Upon disposal or sale,
the cost of trading securities is determined using the first in first out method or weighted
average method,

Held-to-manurity investments comprise term deposits held to maturity o earn profits
periodically and other held to maturity investments. These investments are initially recorded
at cost including purchase price and related transaction costs. After initial recognition, these
investments are recorded at their recoverable amount, Interest income from held-to-maturity
investmenis after the purchase date is recorded on the income statement on an sccrual basis.

Interest earned before the acquisition date is deducted from the initial cost at the time of

purchase.

Investments in subsidiaries, joimt vemtures, and associates acquired during the year are
recognized by the acquiring entity based on the ucquisifion date, acquisition cost, and
accounting procedures in compliance with the accounting standards on "Business
Combinations" and "Investments in Joint Ventures and Associabes."

In the Consolidated Financial Statements, investments in joinl ventures and associales are
aceounted for using equity method. Under the equity method, the investments are initially
recorded in the consolidated halance sheet at cost and subsequently adjusted for changes in
the Corporation’s share of the net assets of the associate after the acquisition date. Goodwill
arising from investments in associstes is included in the carrying amount of the investiment.
The Corporation does not amortize goodwill but assesses its impairment annuvally to
determine whether & write-down is necessary.

X

e e e



VIETNANM MARITIME CORPORATION —JOINT Form No. B 09 - DN/HN

STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year
Mo, 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 31/12/2024
Dong D Distrizt, Hanol

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(Thete poles are a {nngrn] part of and showld be reed fe confancrion with e aecompanying fnancial siafememis)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'ID)
3.5 FINANCIAL INVESTMENT (CONT'D)

For adjustments to the value of investments in joint ventures and associates arising during
the period, the Corporation excludes the portion of preferred dividends attributable to other
shareholders (if preferred shares are classified as equity); the estimated allocation for reward
and welfare funds of joint ventures and associates; and the profits related to transactions
where the joint venture or associate contributes capital or sells assets to the Corporation
befare determining the Corporation’s ownership share in the profit or loss of the joint
venture of assogiate for the reporting period. The Corporation then adjusts the value of the
investment corresponding to its ownership share in the profit or loss of the jeint venture or
associate and recognizes it immediately in the consalidated income statement.

The financial statements of associates are propared in the same period as the Corporation's
consolidated financial statements and follow aceounting policies consistent with those of the
Corporation. Appropriate adjustments are recorded to ensurc the accounting policies applicd
are consistent with those of the Corporation when necessary.

Equity Investments in other ertities comprise investments in equity instruments of other
entities without having control, joint comtrol, or significant influence over the investee.
These investments are initially stated at cost. After initial recognition, these investments are
measured st cost minus any devaluation of investments .

Prowision for devaluation of mvestments is made at the end of the Ascal vear as follows:

- For trading securities investments: The provision is based on the difference between the
original cost of the investments recorded in the accounting books and their market valus
at the time of provision.

- For longterm investments (not classified as trading securities] and where there is no
significant influence over the investee: If the investment is in listed stocks or its fair
value can be relisbly determined, the provision is based on the market value of the
stock. If the fair value of the investment cannot be determined at the reporting date, the
provision is based on the financial statements of the investee at the time the provision is
made.

- For beld-to-maturity investments: If there is clear evidence that part or all of the
investment may not be recoverable, and the loss can be reliably determined, the loss is
recognized as o financial expense for the year and directly deducted from the investment
value

36 RECEIVABLES

Receivables are presented a1 their carrying amount minus provisions for doubtful debts and
are tracked in detail according to original maturity, remaining term at the reporting dete,
debtor, currency type, and other factors based on the Corporation’s management needs.

Provisions for deubtful debts are made for each donbtful receivable based on the estimated
potential loss, Specifically, provisions are allocated for receivables that are past due as
stated in economic contracts, contract commitments, or debt agreements, where the
company has made multiple collection attempts but has not yet recovered the debt, The
determination of the overdue period for receivzbles is based on the original payment
deadline in the initial sales contract, without considering amy debt extensions between
parties. Provisions are also made for receivables that have not yet reached their due date but
where the debtor has gone bankrupt, is undergeing dissolotion procedures, has gone
missing, or has fled. The provisions are reversed when the debi is recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT®D)
INVENTORIES

Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of
inventories includes purchase costs, processing costs, and other directly related expenses
inciarred to bring the inventories to their current location and condition. The net realizable
velne is determined as the estimated selling price minus the estimated costs of completion
and the estimaied costs necessary to sell them.

The value of inventorizs is determined using the weighted average method. Inventories are
accounted for using the perpetual inventory system. However, gt VIMC Shipping Company,
a dependent unit of the parcnt company, inventory value (primarily fuel on ships) is
accounted for using the periodic inventory system.

Method for determining the value of work-in-progress at the end of the period: of work-in-
progress are accumulated based on actual costs incurred for each service or project
consulting item that has not yet been completed. Lomgterm work-in-progress are
accumulated based on the actual costs incurred for real estate invesmment projects held for
sale.

Provisions for inventory devaluation are made at the end of the accounting period for each
inventory item where the cost exceeds the net realizable value. Increases or decreascs in the
provision balance required at the financial year-end are recorded in the cost of goods sold.

FIXED ASSETS

Fixed sssets (langible and intangible) are initially recorded al historical cost. During their
useful life, tengible and intangible fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and carry ing amount.

The historical cost of finance lease fixed assets is recognized at the lower of fair value or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, plus any direcily attributable costs neurred
in relation o the finance lease (excluding value-added tax). During their useful life, finance
lease fixed assets are recorded at historical cost, less sccumulated depreciation and camrying
amount. Finance lease fixed nssets are depreciated over the lesse term and charged to

operating expenses to ensure full capital recovery,

Depreciation of fixed assets is applied on a straight-live basis over their estimated useful life
as follows:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Classes of fixed assels Usefal lives{Year)
Buildings, structures 20~35
Machinery, equipment 05 =10
Motor vehicles, transmission 06 -20
Office equipment and fumiture 03 -10
Land use rights with definite term 50
Land use rights with indefinite term No depreciation
Computer sofitwarne 03
Other intangible sssets 02-21

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are recorded at historical cost. For investment properties that wers put
into use and recorded st cost before the determination of equitization value, the historical
cost and accumulated depreciation are recognized based on the valuation results of the
¢quitized parent company — Corporation, as approved and announced by the competent
authority,

For investment properties leased under operating leases, they are recorded at historical cost,
accumulated depreciation, and net carrying amount. Depreciation is applied using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life as follows:

Classes of fixed assets Useful lives(Year)
Buildings, structures 20-25
Land use rights 50
Infrastruchsre 47

The conversion of owner-occupied property or invenlory inte investment properiy OCCUrs
only when there is a change in use, such as when the gwner ceases 1o use the asset and
begins leasing it to another party under an operating lease or upon the completion of the
construction phage. Similarly, the conversion of investment property into owner-occupicd
property or inventory takes place only when there is a chanpe in use, such ss when the
owner starts using the ascet for its own operations or begins prepering it for sale. The
conversion of investment property into owner-cecupied property or inventary does not alter
the historical cost or carmving amount of the property at the date of transfer.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress costs include assets such as equipment that is in the process of
being procured and installed but has not yet been put inte use, as well 83 basic construciion
projects that are still uader construction and have not been completed or put into use at the
time of closing the hooks for the preparation of the separate financial statements.

These asseis are recorded =t historical cost. The historical cost includes Payments for goods
and services to contractors and supplicrs, Belated borrowing costs incurred during the
investment phase, and Other reasonable expenses directly associated with the formation of
the asset, Depreciation for these assets is applied in the zame manner a8 for other assets and
begins when the asset is available for use.
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

311 OFERATING LEASE

Operating leases refer to fixed asset leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewerds of ownership remains with the lessor. Payments made under operating leases are
recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

312 PREFPAID EXPENSES

Prepaid expenses related to the business operations of multiple financial years are recorded
as prepaid expenses and gradually allocated to the business results over subsequent financial
vears. The value of goodwill and re-evaluated tools and instruments is recognized based on
the enterprise valuation results of the equitized parent company — Corporation, as approved
and announced by the competent authority.

The calculation and allocation of long-term prepaid expenses into production and business
casts for each financial year are based on the nature and extent of each type of expense,
selecting an appropriste sllocation method and criteria.

The Corporation’s prepaid expenses include:

- Prepaid land expenses: These include prepaid land lease payments, including land-
related expenses for which the Corporation has obtained a land use right certificate but
does not meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible fixed sseet. These costs are
recognized in the income statement using the straight-line method over the term of the
Jand lcase contract.

- Tools and instruments: Tools and instruments that have been put into use are allocated
to expenses based on an assessment of the actual situation, with their costs reflected m
the income statement for the year.

- Fixed asset repair costs: One-time repair costs for fixed assets with a significant value
are allocated to expenses based on an assessment of the actual situation, with the costz
reflected in the income statement for the year.

- Rental and insurance expenses: These are allocated hased on the prepaid period.

3.13 PAYABLES

Payables are tracked based on payment terms, creditors, foreign cumency type, and other
factors aceording to the Corporation's management requirements. Payables are classified as
either short-term or longterm in the consolidated financial statements based on their
remaining maturity as of the reporting date.

3.14 BORROWINGS AND FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES
Loans and finance lease lisbilities include various types of bormowings and lease obligations.

These liabilitics are tracked in detail, based on each loan entity, each loan debtor, each loan
contract and each type of loan asset, the repayment term, the original currency (if any).
Laans with the remaining repayment term of more than 12 menths from the reporting date
are presented as long-term loans and financial lease liabilitics. Loans due within the next 12
meonths from the reporting date are classified as short-term loans and finance lease
liabilitics.
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3.15

316

3.17

318

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (CONTINUED)
BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are recognized as production and business expenses in the period in which
they are incurred, except for borrowing costs that are directly atributable to the investmeat,
construction, or production of qualifying assets that require a substantial period of time
{over 12 months) to be ready for their intended use or sale. These costs are capitalized as
part of the asset's value when the conditions set out in Viemamese Accounting Stendard No.
16 = Bormowing Costs are met,

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024, gll loan interest expenses are recorded in
the Consolidsted Income Statment.

ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimates of the amount payable for
goods and services used during the period when no invoices are awvailable or when
accounting records and documents are insufficient, including loan interest expenses and
other related costs.

The recording of accrued expenss as production and business expenses during the year shall
be carried out under the matching principle between revenues and cxpenses during the year.
Accrued expenses are settled with actuzl expenses incurred. The difference between accrued
and actusl expenses is reverted.

FROVISION FOR PAYABLES

Provisions for payables are recognized only when the following conditions ere met:

= The Corporation has a present obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a

past event;
=  There is a probable sutflow of economic benefits required to settle the obligation;

- A rcliable estimate of the obligation amount ¢an be made.

The recognized velue of a provision is the most reasonable estimate of the amount reguired
to sertle the present obligation as of the financial year-end date.

Omly expenses directly related to the initially recognized provision can be offset against that
Provision.

Provisions for payables are recorded as production and business expenses in the financial
vear, I the provision recognized in a prior financial year exceeds the required provision in
the current reporting period, the excess amount is reversed and recognized as a reduction in
production and business expenses for the year.

UNEARNED REVENUES

Uneamed revenoe refers to the amounts prepaid by customers for asset leases covering one
or multiple finencial years.

Uneamed revenue is recognized in sales revenue and service provision according to the
amount allocated appropriately 1o each financial year,
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3-15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (CONTINUEL)

OWNER'S EQUITY

Owner's equity ot the end of year is recognized based on the actual comtributed capital of the
owner. which is the charter capital of the Corporation approved by the State Capital
Management Committee at Enterprise under Decision No. 277/QD-UBQLY on 18 June
2020,

At Bien Dong Onc Member Limited Liability Shipping Company ("Bien Dong’)
Ascording to the guidelines of the Ministry of Finance in Official Letter No. T5/BTC-
TCDN dated 17 September 2015, the difference between the amount of debt Bien Dong
assumed from the Vietnam Debt and Asset Trading Corporation (DATC) and the principal
and interest payable to eredit institations (incurred before the creditor conversion) i3
recorded a5 an increase in the value of state capital at Bien Dong. This guidance differs from
the Victnamese Accounting Standards (VAS), which require such differences to be recorded
in the income statement for the year.

Before 2017, Bien Dong applied the guldance from Official Letter No. 751/BTC-TCDON
dated 17 September 2015, from the Ministry of Finance ("Official Letter 7517) regarding the
sccounting trestment of the difference between the book value of liabilities and the assumed
debt value with DATC. Accordingly, the difference between the amount of debt assumed by
the company from DATC and the principal and interest payable to credit institutions was
recognized as an increase in the value of state capital at Bien Dong.

From 2018 to 2021, Bien Dong adopted the Vietnamese Accounting Standards (VAS),
under which the difference berween the amount of debt assumed from DATC and the
principal and interest payable to credit institutions was recorded in the income
statenent for the reporting year

From 2072 to 2023, Bien Dong applied the guidance from Circular No. 462021/TT-BTC
dated 23 June 2021, Official Letter No. 75 /BTC-TCDN dated 17 September 2015, Official
Latter No. 5883/BTC-TCDN dated § May 2017, and Official Letter No. 1440/BTC-TCDN
dated & February 2021 from the Ministry of Finance.

If Bien Dong consistently applies the regulations of the Vietnamese Accounting Standards
(VAS) in recognizing these amounts, then on the consolidated balance sheet as of 1 January
2024, the Revaluation Surplus (Code 416) will decrease by VIND 2,166.24 billion, while the
Undistributed After-Tax Profit (Code 421) will increase by the corresponding amount,
Similarly, as of 31 December 2024, the Revaluation Surplus (Code 416) will decrease by
VIND 2,166.24 billion, with a correspanding increase in the Undistributed After-Tax Profit
{Code 421},

Share premium reflects the difference between the par value, direct costs related to share
issuance, and the actual issusnce price of shares (including cases of reissuance of treasury
shares). The premium can be positive (if the issuance price is higher than the par value snd
the direct jssmance costs) or negative (if the isssance price is lower than the par value and
issuance costs),

Other capital within owner's equity reflects business capital formed from business
results, donations, sponsorships, or asset revaluations (if permitted to increase or
decreass the owner's contributed capital). Revaluation surphus is recognized in cases
such as when there is a government decizion to revalue assets, during the
equitization of state-owned enterprises, or in other cases as prescribed by law.
Undistributed after-tax profit reflects the business results (profit or loss) after corporate
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income tax, as well as the profit distribution or loss tresiment within the
Corporation.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from remdering of services

Revenue is recognized when the outcome of a transaction can be measured relisbly. For
services rendered over multiple years, services revenue is recognized using the percentage
of completion method as of the balance sheet date. Sale of services is recagnized when all of
the following conditions are met:

- Revenue can be measured reliably;
- It is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the

Company;
- The percentage of completion of services ai the balance sheet date can be measured;

- Costs incurred in rendering the services and the estimeted costs to complete the zervices
can be measured,

The completed portion of service rendering is determined using the completed work
evaluation method.

Income from interest, royalties, dividends, profit distibutions, and other financial income is
recognized when the following two (2) conditions are met:

- There is a probsble inflow of sconomic benefits from the transaction,
- The income amount can be measured relizbly.

Dhvidends and profit distributions are recognized when the Corporation is entitled to receive
dividends or profit distributions from its investments,

Common shares or siock dividends: No income is recognized when the right to receive
common shares or stock dividends is established. The number of common shares or stock

dividends received is disclosed in the relevant consolidated financial statements.
REVENUE DEDUCTIONS

Revenue deductions from sales and service provisions arising in the year includs trade
discounts, sales discounts and sales refums.

Trade discounts, sales discounts and sales returns hat occur within the same period as the
sale of products, grods, or services are recognized as a reduction in revenue in the pesiod
they occur. For cases whese the products, goods, or services were sold in previous periods
and revenue deductions arise in a subsequent period, the recognition follows these
principles: If the deduction occurs before the issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, it is recorded as a reduction in revenue in the prior periods consolidated
financial statements (the reporting period), if the deduction occurs after the issuance of the
consolidated financial statements, it is recorded as a reduction in revenue in the current
period’s financial statements (the subsequent period).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

322 COST OF GOODS S0LD
Cost of goods sold in the perlod is recorded in accondance with the revenpe penerated in the
period and ensures compliance with the principle of prudence.

323 FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include the following:

- Expenses or losses related to financial investment activities;

- Bormowing costs;

- Losses from the disposal or transfer of short-tenm scourities, and transaction costs for
selling securities; '

- Provisions for impairment of trading securities, provisions for investmient losses in other
entities, foreign exchange loszes from currency sales, and forcign exchange ratc losses.

These -expenses are recorded al their gross amounts incurred during the year and are not

offset against financial income.

324 CORPORATE INCOME TAX
Current corporate income Tax (CIT) expense and deferred CIT expense

Current CIT expense is determined based om taxable income for the period and the
applicable corporate income tax rate for the current financial year,

Deferred CIT expense is determined based on deductible temporary differences, taxable
temporary differences, and the applicable corporate income tax rate.

Current CIT expense is not offset against deferred CIT expense.

Corporate income fax rate for e current financial year

For the financial vear ending 31 December 2024, the Corporation applies a CIT rate of 20%
for taxable income derived from business and production activities.

Corporate income tax expense includes both current corporate income tax and deferred
corporate income tax.

3.25 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic camnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit or loss after tax attributable o
common shareholders of the Corporation (after adjustments for allocations to the Welfare
and Reward Fund and the Ewecutive Reward Fund) by the weighted average number of

common shares outstanding during the year.
326 RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Carporation if it has the ability 10 control the
Corporation or exercise significant influence over the Corporation in making finencial and

operational decisions. Related parties include:

-  Enterpriscs that have the right to control, are directly or indirectly controlled through
one or more intermediaries, or onder the common control with the Corporation,
including subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint arrangement, and associates;

- Individuals who have the right to directly or indirectly vote in the reporting enterprises,
leading to significant influence over these enterprises, key management personnel who
have the authority and responsibility for planning, menaging and costrolling the
Corporation's activities, including clese family members of such individusls;
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3.26

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
RELATED PARTIES (CONT'DY)

- Enterprises owned by aforementioned individuals, where they hold direct or indirect
voting rights or have significant Influence over the enterprise.

When assessing each relationship of related parties, the nawre of the relationship is
considensd, nol merely its legal form.

SECGMENT REPORTING

A sepment is a distinetly idemtifiable component of the Corporation that is involved in
providing related products or services (business segment) or providing products or services
within a specific economic environment (geographical segment). Each segment is exposed
to d iTerent risks and retums compared to other segments.

Segment information is prepared and presented in accordance with the accounting policies
applied in the preparstion and presentation of the Corporation’s consolidated financial
staterments. The purpose is to help users of the finzncial statements gain a cloer
understanding and comprehensive assessment of the Corporation’s performance.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

311122024 01D

YND YN

Cash on hand 16,561,419,383 14,337,111.932
Demand deposits L B50, %4, 376,000 1,507.841,317,660
Cash equivalents {*) | 3BT 486,350,500 1,249,260 TEE 006

3,255,012,1 2.771,448.21 Téﬂﬂ

(*) Cash equivalents refer to commercial banks with maturitics not exceeding three months.
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A

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Short-term

Retated pariles

= Istermational Shipping and Labour Cooperation 18C
= "YWietnam = lapmn Intermational Transport Co, 140

= Vigtnam Honda Logistics Vietnam Ca_Lid

= Bn Dong Logistics J5C

= Vasco Agency and Logisties 15C

- SITC-Dink Wu Logistics Co. Lid

=HPH Lagistic J5C

-Dong Do - Hai Phong Port Contadper Lines JSC

= Cua Lo Pord Taghoat and Maritime Service 150

- 8P-554 International Conlainer Services Joint Yenlure Company
- Cai Mep [nternaticmal Terminal Co.,Lid

- Kaorea Express Sai Gon Ford Co, Lbd

-NYE Autn Logisties {Viethem) Co.,Lid

- g Mang Port Tughoat J8C

- Vighip 150

- Cai Lan Intermational Container Terminal Limited Liability
- Domg Do Marene JSC

- Thi Wai General Port JSC

- Baipon Maritime Toimt Stsck Company

- ¥inashin Ocean Shipping Co. Lid

- Can Tho Shiphuilding Intrasiry and Transport J5C
- 5P - PRA Inlermaiional Part Co., Lad

= Mosco-Yinalines Ship Repair 150

= ¥igtnom Sen Transport and Chartering JSC

-HNom Can Port Joint Stock Company

G g e HEE i g

For the fiscal year ended 31/12/2024

311252024 1A 202
Amonnt PFrovision Ao Provislon
VNI VD LT YD
1,744,86%,889 A28 (254,544,793 1,67H) 1,503,172 355,537 {241,635,972,042)
BrEZEEOTOIR {547,015, 058) o5 @2) 337 083 {a 547, FFL210)
09932011 - 61,904,007 -
| 24,636,288 6037373
1,137, 853,872 - B0, 15 A5
4,655, 791,380 2729489 380
| (133 507 304 - AT 875,817 ]
. 32,151,600
4,543,650.314 4,455,304,425 .
3,260.379.082 5 108,531,636
TLGR,540 - 22 RA0.565 -
2. 785,844,500 22,522 052 230
63,654 60A, 209 53 3608,974 040 -
Q2 5359 %14 - 1603, T8 697 -
345,175,067 A3 443,612
- - 20,2645 0 -
3. 754,770,629 (1,754,779, 62491 3,754, T (3. 754, T 629}
2RI2051, 14 - 1,58 475 000 -
I 15 CHED, B 15, =00 e ey =
z 167 400,000 -
24, 000, 00 = - =
T03, 135,329 {103, 136,320) THIO0] 5K (PO 903 5§81}
. - 112954, 111 -
- £,000,000 z
FO0T,030, 300 245,805 831 -
I35, 142,300 - -
47,000, 500 &
31
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT T
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L

TRADES RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Oiher partfes
- Drenmar Chartering & Trading GmbH

- INC Invesimand end Trading 15C

- Maersk Lines A/S

- Billion Industrial Viemam Co., Lid.

- Oeenn Metwork Express Pie Lid

- Phaoe Long Port Co., Lid.

« Bni Gom Port Coal 150

- Mam Twew Shipping Co, Lid

- Maigai Mitto Logistics Vielmam Co., Lid.

- Mekong Internationn] Trensport Company

- Sal Gaun Port Coal 15C

« Wi Phao Mining Co.,id

- Horth-East Regionnl Ssute Reserve Depanimem
- (hier trede receivables

Lomg-term

Refated pariies

- Cai Mep Imernational Terminal o Lid (*)

093,590,714,342

12,843,157 875

3171272024 01012024

Amouni Provigion Amound Provision
YD YD VD VNI
{52, 747,002 815 {248 P0G 875,720 1397 25] 2B ASH (237 088,108 833
16,658 268 724 (16,658 268 724 16,658 268 724 (146,658, 268,724)
G0, 597 S0% 042 (60,597 598 Q41) 65437185 833 (59,727 257, 173)
10,561,674,714 ¢ 0563 162,165 3
16,509,008 430 19, 726,656 390 -

24,778 805,976 25, 766,212,030

1973, 162,400 8709947634
JH 65T 005 546 . 32427170315 -
21,977 044,420 (21,977,044, 2240 21,977,044 420 (21,977 044 430
14,116,722 448 - 12218524 395 =
6,2 14,501,642 P I27.586 3066 -
106,934,003 S8.732.114,604 -
219010, 382470 42 354, 561 913 -
. E 20,594,864,484 :
LAV IS 982211 (150,763,961 634) LOSE 958,147,181 (138, T25.629.516)
03,599, 714,342 - 102,845,157 875 -
03509, 14,342 T2 843 FETETS -

1.838,469,604,170 {254,544, 9 L,678) 1,606,015,513 412 (241,635 EE&I

(*) Receivable from Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Lid, [CMIT) related to infrastructure facility rental fees at Cai Mep Port, This includes a
receivable refated to deferred land rental payments as per the contract agreement for the period from 2013 to 2019, This amount will be paid in 24
installments starting fram 30 June 2019, until 31 December 2030, On 30 June 2023, Snigon Port and CMIT signed a temporary payment deferral
apreement with the lessors. Accordingly, the land rental paymenis deferred under the contract agreement for the period from 2013 to 2019, for the first
four installments, will be further deferred and will commence from 30 June 2025,

o, Ay e O
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.

ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS
J22a4 1A 2024
Amouni Provision Aot Provision
WD VND ¥ND YND
Short-term 004 476,701,248 (57,530,853, 080) 723,497,121,304 {57,539,883,949)
Refated parties 2676,105,764 . S00L530,480 -
Construction Consultation JSC for Maritime Boilding [ R4, 184,500 L0 HI0AR0 %
Diong Do Marine 18C 2485921264 . - -
Otlher partes 901,800,595, £84 (57,539,883, 039) 723,906,290, 824 {§7,539,883,989)
Bachdang Shipbuilding Co.,Lnd {1} 69,262,562 000 (49,230.258.319) 69,262 562 (00 (49.239,258,319)
Mitswi E & 8 Co,, Ltd |0, CHRG, 36T 474 - 194, 746,186,888 -
Wam Trien Shipbuilding Co_Ltd (2) 256,655,705, 789 260,255,705, TED -
Huynh Thy Trading Services Co.,Ltd - . 44, 988,000,000 -
Oilsers 457,795,065 207 {8,300,625,670) 157,653,836,138 (8,300, 625,670)
Long-term 24,653,395,581 . 14,653,398,581 -
Real Estete 10 J5C 24,653,308 581 . 24,653,398,581 -
929130099829 (STSVORRIOKW ___ JdR,150, 10885 (57550 8A3.080)
(1) Includes:

= Advance payment related to Contract No, 01/VNL-BD dated November 22, 2010, signed between the Parent Company — Corporation and Bach

Dang Shipbuilding Company for the construction of three vessels: BV-10, BY-11, and BY-12, amcunting to VIND 49,239,258,319. This advance
payment exceeds the finalized settlement value due to the projest termination,

- The remaining amount is an advance payment for the construction of the Lucky Star and Blue Star vessels with Vietnam Sea Transport Joint Stock
Company. The parties are currently completing the necessary procedures to finalize the vessel settlement value.

(£) Advance payment to Mam Trieu Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company for the construction of the Vosco Sunrize vessel of

Vietnam Sea Transport Joint Stock Company. The two parties are in the process of completing the necessary procedures for the final settlement of
the vessel's value.
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T.

Far the fiscal vear ended 31/12/2024

LOAN RECEIVARLES
32024 017012024
Aot Fravision Amount Provision
VND VHD Rl WM
Short-term 3 AR D0, B 5,212 0410, 00 =
Retated particy 2002 M0, Gk O - &3,8F 2,000 800 -
BPESA International Conlriner Services folm Venure Commpany (i) 22,00 000,000 - 3,312, 0:00,000 ::
Oeker parfies £ 400, G0 A0 = I, ST, ), BT =
[akers 1,400 000,000 - 1,400,001, 0D
Long-term 1,080,764,677 466 = A2 0680, D00 #
Relared parties 1, 050,764,677,406 - BA3.211,680,000 -
5P.55A4 Inernntionel Contniner Services Jolnt Venture Company (i) 3T I00,E30, 000 - S04, LOE 000,000 .
EPPSA Intersational Pore Co,Lid (i) 424,974, 330, 000 - 4, 103, 6R0,000 -
Ol Lan Iaternational Container Tarmimal Co, Lid, {138 31K, 680,407 466 = = =
AT —— T :
(i) Loan under Resalution No. 119/NQ-CSG dated 16 March 2023, issued by the Board of Directors of Saigon Port Joint Stock Compary
(Saigen Port), a subsidiary of the Corporation, approving the restrueturing of the loan debt of Saigon Port-SSA International Container
Services Co., Ltd, ($SIT) with credit institutions, in sccordance with the Loan Agreement Terms and the Sharcholder Financing
Agreement, Specifically, the sharcholders agreed to finance the buyout of SSIT"s loan and all outstanding debt obligations, with a total
required funding of USD 48,000,000, of which Saigon Pert contributed UUSD24,000,000 (through a term loan of USD 24,000,000 at an
exchange rate of 23,518 VND/USD). On 23 June 2023, Saigon Port completed the disbursement of VND 564,432,000,000 to SSIT
under the Shareholder Loan Agreement dated 28 April 2023, and the SSIT Restructuring Agreement. The loan has a S-year lerm, an
interest rate of £.3% per year, and is unsecured,
(ii) Loan to SP-PSA International Port Co., Lid., with a principal amount of USD 4,950,000 (from the Parent Company — Corporation)

and USD 11,880,000 {from Saigon Port), under the Shareholder Loan Agreement dated 26 August 2008, This corresponds to a 15%
cquity contribution from the Corporation and 36% from Saigon Port in SP-PSA International Port Co., Ltd.. The loan is subject to 2n
interest rate based on SOTFR (Secured Ovemight Financing Rate) and is repayable upon request by PSA Vietnam Pte Lid. (the lender).
At the time of preparing the financial statements, the Corporation and Saigon Port were still in discussions with the parties to finalize
the amendment of the loan agreement and the basis for caleulating accrued interest receivable and payable.

(i) Receivable from Cai Lan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (CICT) under the debt purchase agreement signed between

VIMC, §SA Holdings Intemational, and the lenders, as part of the CICT financial restructuring plan, which was approved by the
Extraordinary General Mecting of Sharcholders on 22 July 2024,
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B OTHER RECEIVABLES
JL1272024 U101 2024
Amount Provision Amomnt Provisian
VD VD YMD YD
Short-lcrm 1,114, 081,771,535 (AT, 197,243, 78L) TEIAT5,060. 009 (T, 00 86 90T
= Advances 23,680,410,730 . 23,006,540,315 "
= Colleterals and deposits 5T.B62,524.614 [162,556,875) [3,654,904,236 (162,556,875}
- Receivahies from dividends paid, prafits distributed 40,250,966 469 {3,287,420975) 4 875 445,211 (3,257,420,973)
- Deposit and bean imerest receivabio 203 08 093 332 (7,733,305,728) Loo 152 408,141 {7, 713,305,7T25)
= Payment on perbalf B, 3862 Td, 300 (96,547 406) 18,563,631,216 (96,597 406}
= Input WAT must be collected from Terminal Mo, 2 Project - 12,810,751 466 . F2,810,75], 464 -
- Receivables from equitisation 28,719,586,558 - 2§,719,586,550 &
= Dither receivables 577072064 0646 (35,917 362,797 4621,552,292,914 (35,754, 805,522)
+ Bachdang Shipbuilding Co., Lid (i} 52,630,208 044 - 50, 103,408 832 -
b Depreciation and interest on assets of beidee No,  ond Mo, iP4,218,.263, 761 - I 28263, 76
Jaf Chin Fe container yard (1
+ Oihera 330234 104 251 (35917 362 707} 218 40,822, 333 (35,754, 805,022
Long-term 307 034,939,790 = 112,569,520,285 (36,567,700}
- Collatesals and deposits 164,599 664 640 - 41,454 3%0 516 -
= Receivables from compensation costs Tor houses, srsctuses, T4, 166,933 176 - 51,220, 150,029 -
crops, end temporary residence expenscs
= Dkher receivables G63.268,341,765 - 19,504, 576,730 {36,567, 700)
1421,0116,711,325 (47,197,243, 782) M.Mlﬂ !47.5?1,1!1.@'?]
35
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K

(1)

(i)

OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

I M4 0012024

Amount Provisian Ambunt Provisien

VNI YND YD YAD

In which: Other receivables are related parties 312,821,129.803 (23,B52,306,009) 168,251,045,938 (23.872,306,009)
= Cal Mep Ioternstional Terminal Co.,Ltd L 655,210,725 - 1680469752 -
= SP-PSA Internationsl Port Ca, Ltd 2125378977105 54519493 496 -
- Vinalines Hoa Lac Logistic J5C 324,126,585 - 324,126,585 .
- Nam Can Port JSC 1,310,988 907 (3,310,988,907) 3310988907 (1,310,088.907)
- Oriental Shipping and Trading 1SC G,700,1 48507 [, 602, 648, 507) 6581 648,507 (6,622,648, 507
- Can Tho - Thanh Tuan Port Co.Lad 154,250,000 . 154,250,000 .
= Winashin Oeean Shipping Co., Lid Q7057412225 (12532.006,846) B1.375,3006,534 {12532,016,846)

- Can Tho Shiphuilding Intrestry and Transport 15C 1,006,551,749 (1,006,651, 740) 1,006,651,749 (1,006,651, 749)
= Khuyen Luorg Port JSC . - 66,004,000 .
- SP-55A International Container Services Joint Ventore Company 19152 110466
- Dong Do Maritime Joint Stock Company 74,364,040 -

Implementation of Reselution No.317/NQ-CNTT dated 23 November 2015, issued by Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC), approving
the reassignment of the debt recipient from SBIC's entrusted capital source at Shipbuilding Industry Finance One Member Limited Liability Company,
related to the transfer of the 1,730 TEL - V22 veszel construction investment project from Bien Dong Shipping One Member Co., Ltd, {Bien Doag) o
Bach Dang Shipbuilding One Member Co., Lid. (Bach Dang).

According to the handover minutes signed on 5 Auguost 2015, Bien Dong transferred this project along with the related loan principal and interest
liabilities to Bach Dang a3 of 5 August 2015,

The outstanding debt represents the remaining amount receivable from Bach Dang after the transfer of project costs, loan liabilities, and interest
expenses [See Mote 24 — Loans and Finance Lease Lishilities for more details),

The amount paid by Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary, into the State Budget, covering depreciation costs and loan interest for Berths
Mo, 4 and Mo. 5 at Chua Ve Port for the period from 2014 10 31 December 2018, as required by the Ministry of Finance under Official Letier No.
I9IOVBTC-TTr dated 3 April 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
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L

DMIUBTFUL DEBTS

Form Mo B 09 — DMN/HMN
For the fiscal yeor ended 31/12/2024

J1x20zd 0112024
Cosi Recoverable Cost Heeoverable
value vl ¢
YD VND VD VNI
Shori-term 393,051,586,523 29,328,063 388 374,129.864,54% 27.579.734,251
- Bach Dang Shipbuilding Industry Co.,Ltd 49,739,258,319 ) 49,239, 258,319 =
- Denmar Chartering & Trading Gmbh 16,658, 268,724 - 16,658, 268,724 .
= DIC Investment and Trade JSC 6, 507, 508,942 - B5437 185,833 5,709,928 661
= Yinashin Ocean Shipping Co.,Lid 23.059,435,641 47,835,304 [ 6,547 728,383 -
= MWam Tricu Shipping Co., Ltd 21,977,044,420 - 21,977,044, 420 -
- Cai Mep Intemational Terminal Co,, Ltd. 39.7046,522,031 8.843,939,048 - .
- Others 181,813 458 446 20,436,187 636 204,270,378 870 22,168,805 590
I-rm-h'm 1 - 36,567,700 .

Others - - 36,567, 700
= 392,051,586,523 Fi 63 374,166,432.240 &mgs
a7
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10

11.

INVENTORIES

= Raw malerials

- Tools and supplies
= ‘Work in propress

- Goods (*)
= Consignmenls

J1/122624 0110172024
Cost Provision Cnst Provision
VND ¥ND VND VND
431,641,044 485 - A, 133,145 057 -
29,133,777.571 . 23,996,756,196 o
9.538,137,150 - 11,327 422,057 :
219,070,732 588 {204,319,590,800) 215,806, 167,804 (204,433, 892.650)
% & 60018182 =
G659, 383,741,794 (204,319,5H),800) 697,865,529.396 (204,453,892 650)

(*) The goods include two ship engines for 47,500 DWT (HB-02/03) built at Ha Long Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company, with a
ozl value of VND 210,469,590,800. This project was discontinued following Resolution Neo. S13/NQ-HBTV dated 6 March 20135, by the
Corporation's Board of Members. These two ship engines are currently being used by the Corporation as collateral with the Vietnam Development
Bank - Northeast Regional Development Bank Branch under the asset mortgage contract No. 201 9/HETCTS-NHPT dated 23 August 2019, As of 31
Decamber 2024, the Corparation hae made a provision for the impairment of these two ship engines, amounting to YND 204,319,590 800,

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Held 1o maturity invesments

Shori-lerm

Term deposits (*)

{*) Term deposits ranging from 3 to 12 months at commercial banks.

3171272024 01012024
Cost Fair value Cout Fair value
VND VND VND VNI
5.138,580,323,941 # 5138, 580,323,941 £776,990,271,626  5.276,990,271,626
5,138, 580,323,941 5,138,580,323.941 5276,990,271,626 5.276,990.271,626
5,138,580,323,041 5 138.58#0,323,941 5.276,990,271,616 ___5,276.000.271,626
38
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11. FINANCIAL INVESMENTS (CONTINUEI)

Inveviment in joinf vemiures, axsociotey
Company's name

- Khuyen luong Part 15C

- Cgi Lan International Container Terminal Co,, Lid.
- Can Tho Shipbailding and Transportation JSC

- YOBCO Trading and Service JSC

= Vietnam Sea Transport and Chartering JSC

= Nam Can Port Joint Siock Company

- Thi Vai General Port JSC

- Hai Phoag Port Invesiment Developmend Service J5C
- Hal Phong Marine Iivesment and Trading J5C

- Segull Shipping Company

- WOSCO Apgency and Lopistics 1SC

-"Tan Hung Phuc Maritime Serace 15C

- Trangportation and Trading Services JSC

- Drang Do Maoritime Foint Stock Company

- HPH Logisties 15C

- Cua Lo Port Tugboat and Maritime Service 1SC

- Bai Gon Port Logistics ISC

- Da Mang Port Logistics JSC

= KM Cargg Service Hai Phong Co. L4d

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Proportion  Proporti Value (f) Proportion  Proportion Yalue (i}
of voting on of of voting  of Interest
richts  Interesi rights
% ) VND W e VNI
40.00%  45.00% 3B,842,478,997 49 00%% 49.00% 32,552,707,590
S0.00% 28 34% - 500,005 2B.34% -
PA% 334 . 3345% 33.45% -
46.45% 23,69 20,308.310,076 45,4505 23.69%: 20,328 470,544
#3.32%  43.31% . 44.61% 4461 % =
4935 49.35% - 49.35% 49 35% -
gl B 13.74%, [ 7,000,265 402 21.00% 15.74% 12,940, 195,874
30.52%  28.25% 29757050, 562 30.53% 28.25% 31,599.714.64%
A0.53% 38.48% 30,990,342, 254 A0.53% 38 48% H.ﬂﬂ-’l.ﬁﬁl.ﬂﬁ]
: < L 2546% 26,46% 6,680, 107,925
3600%  1BJ6% 3219817, 702 36%% 18.36% 2,202 661,742
20.00% 13.09% 300,00, G0 2001 % 13,00% J00, 000,000
33.40%  33.49% SH,186,401,190  13.49% 33.40% 60,056,914, 581
AB.9T% 48.97% - 48.97% 48974 =
J8.E]1% 35.91%, [ 4,000,653, (69 R 3592% 16,164,948 515
36.00% IB36% 6,724 806,131 A6.00% 18.36% §.B76,541 454
20012%  1R62% 2627 515,041 20.12% 18.62% 1,678,103 402
45.10%%  33.83% 26,000,530,784 45.10% J3.83% 25.501,991,538
36.00%% 3332 23,770, 148,807 J6.00% A3.32% 21,380,245 716
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11. FINANCIAL INVEEMENT (CONTINUEL)

Tavesinen! in joint venfures, associales
Company's name

- Srmart Logjetica Servica Co., Ltd. (Hai Phong)

- Da Mang Part Tughoat JSC

- Bien Dong Lopistics Joint Stock Company

- Bal Gon Ben Tre Trading Service Transport Logistic
= Canstruetion Consulting for Maritime Building 15C
- Hal Au Marine Sarvice J1SC

- Viship Maritime Transport Joint Stock Company

- Vinalines North-East Joint Stook Company

- International Marntime and Labor Cooperation JSC

= Dimiental Shipping and Trading 1SC [(OSTC)

- SP-8EA I[nternational Container Services Joint Venture

Company
= Can Tho - Thanh Tuas Part Co.,Ltd

= Coi Mep International Tesminal Co., Lid

- BP-PESA International Port Co, Lid

- Korea Express Sad Gon Port Co,Ltd

=NYK Ao Logistic Vietnam Co. Lid

- ¥inalines Dong Do Ship Repair Co., Lid

- BITC Dvinh Vu Logistics Co.,Lid

- Mhat Viet Internstionel Transport Joint Venture Compary
- Vinalines Honda Logistic Vietnam Co.,Lid

- ¥inalines Hoa Luc Logistics Vietnam Co., Lid

= Marine Industry Service JSC

gLl e e s

31122024 10172024
Proportion  Froporti Value (i) Proportion Froportion Yalue (i)
of voting on of of votinmg  of Intercst
rights  Interest rights
il ] YND o % YND
20000 185134 35,495,162.924 . = =
360000 2T.00% 31, 792,013,335 36.00% 2.0 29.050,220,748
21000 21.00% = 21.00% 21.00% E
30.00%s 13.09% - F.00% 13.09%: 200,000,000
4.00%  4500% 27,249,691,922 49.00% 49.00% 26,604,292,218
. - - 26.46% P6.46% 14,641,477,187
37.00%  37.00% - JT00%% 37.00% -
25.00%  213.14% 25.00% 23.14% -
I6.00%  36.00% - 36.00% 36.00% -
40.00%  49.00% - 49.00% 45.00%% =
S0.00% 36.55%% TTOE39 250,571 50.00% 3655 592,831 899,157
47198 46.T1% 4,276 490, ThS 47.19%: g6, 7% 5,853,954 912
S0.00%  45.K2% - S0.00%% 43, 82% =
5000%  3B54% 439,181, 278,303 50.00%% I8.54% 393,380,963,923
50L00% 32.712% 30,591,830,926 50.00% 37N 31,808,526,562
20.00%  ID21% 1,955,273,059 20.00% 10.21% A4, TR1,572, 238
45.56%  45.56% - 43.56% 45.56% -
S000%  47.21% LE4,B4%, 146,303 S0L00% AT.21% 204 276,672,941
SO.00% SO 37,621, 103,451 50.00% SO0 AT,155,841,198
2217%  12.55% 7,622,002,383 22.12% 12.55% 8,674,889,576
3780 21.49% 5,506 276,145 37.89% 21.05% 5,588,940 381
- . - 20.00% 15,0k 13,285 887 592
I FTTR AT INLS) 641506, 308,635
4
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION - JSC

Na. | Dao Duy Avh, Phuang Mal Ward, Dong Dia Districe, Hanoi

Form No B 09 = DN/HN
For the fiscal vear ended 3 11272024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{There nedes are an integral paet of and showld be read in confrraction with the aocompanying fimancind shaltsents)

11.

FINANCIAL INNESMENT {CGHTTNUED}
Invesimeni in other entitics

Company's name

Investment in other entities

- Vicinam Moritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank
- Vien Dong Pearl Urban Development [nvestment
Co,Lid

- OTM Intemational Port Joint Stock Company

= Quy Mhon Mew Port J5C

= Orthers

[nvesiment in other enfities by welfare fund

- Viemam Maritime Commercial Toint Siock Rank
= (thera

31122024 017012024

Gii ghe Dy phimg T3 1§ Gid gic Dirphing T

VND VND %a VNI YND %
189,522,247,319  (23,333,078,200) = 405,417,493,658  (23,064,587,030) -
44,195,028,230 - DIB%E  45,990,290,109 - 0.18%
300,001,000,000 - 556%  300.001,000,000 - 5.56%
13,594,424 002 (21,B80,635615) 1135%  33,594.424,002 (21.BB0,635615) 11.35%
18,000,000,000 - 16.68%  1£,000,000,000 - 16.68%
(6,268,204,913)  (1452,442,585) - 7.831,770,447  (1,183,951,415) 0.00%
6,000,162,283  (1,000,000,000) i G,000,162,263 (1000000000  0.00%
2.593,162,283 : 2,593, 162,283 - 0.00%
3,407,000,000  {1,000,000.000) 3,407.000,000  (1,000,000,004)
39 02 _(24333,078,200) = 411,417,655.941 (24,064,587 =

(i) For investments owned by the Corporation before 31 December 2016 (the date of enterprise valuation for equitization), the investment value is
recorded hased on the enterprise valuation results for equitization, as approved and announced by the competent authorities.

(i) Saigon Port Joint Stock Company (Saigon Port), & subsidiary of the Corporation, has recorded an investment in the form contributed capital by
assets, specifically a 600-meter-long wharf (K6, K7, K3, K9, and K10) & Nha Reng - Khanh Heoi Porl, inlo fo Npgoe Vien Dong Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (Ngoe Vien Dong), with a contributed capital value of YND 300,001,000,000, equivalent to a 5.6% ownership interest. Saigon
Port has not been able to obtain the financial statements of Ngee Vien Dong Company from 2021 to the present. However, the contributed assets
remain under management, operation, end commercial use by the company, and Ngoc Vien Dong has committed to bearing all cosis related to the
menagement and land use obligations with the State, in accordance with the Agreement dated 31 August 2017, between Ngoe Vien Dong and Saigon
Port. The Board of General Directors of the Corporation sssesses that this investment has not suffered any impainnent.

e L BT I i S
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION = J5C Form No B 09 - DNTIN

No. | Dag Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanel For the fiscal year ended 31/12/72024
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT?D)
{These motes ave an ftegral part of ard Showld be reod i confuncion with the accosporiing finawcial siriemenrs)

12. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Budldings, Machinery, Vehicles, Mnnepement Others Tatal
sirueiures eq) il ot Tramspaxrtationm, equlpment
e ipmeni
YND ¥un YHND YED VD YND
HISTORICAL COST
010172024 B A6, 304,074,324 3,0RE 024 66T, TS 18,380,324,929,294 I35, 558,471,102 57, 168,767,719 31, 225381305244
- Construction investment fad 1 620 4RE 242 1%, 192 a6l 660 6,070, 488,978 6,430,951 608 G2 218 580 496
complted
- Purcha=e in yanr 2025303 982 459, 163 494, 801 &% 1,715,569, 446 14,099,540, 709 650,750,000 D6T054,658 938
- Liquidation, disposal [3,182.946.171) (RO.6T0.654,858) (2,219,707 830, 217) (5,600 876,214) (219,563,636) (2,318,489,980.091%
- Reclassification 12,693 932,774 5.216,142,188 {15,250,578,055) (559, 196,893 ) . -
- Handower fo Hai Phong (556,924 356 144) (263,479 153) (564,347,647 793 T 1A T = [(560.545,853,433)
City
= Oither increases/decreases (6,270, B08,4TR) (15.287,040,000) (3,005,007 490) 885 266,763 (1,534,625 B95) (23,677 640 105)
ANIZI0T4 2,554, 269,628,529 édﬂﬁ?ﬁi IEE&EEHE&W _H'?.BI!,HE,EN S 065 A28, 198 1&'.15135"!!}]!]!919
ACCUMULATED DEPRECTATION
01012024 {5,361,439,414,013)  (2,178,762,787.471)  (15,184.280,735,625)  (158,960,816,556) (45,157.51 9,673 (22928, TO 12733410
= Drepreciation in year (255,412,426,990) (177,524,303, 1007 (998.493,525,377) (20,795 420,855) (3.637.318,733) (1,455 B53,004, 064
= Handover to Hai Fhong 547,660,673, 042 235,675,000 564 347 04T 2, 793,710,479 - 551,254 408,208
City
= Liguidation, dispasal 3,077,292, 545 BU,675,162,225 2. 172,260.5950,686 5,699 8T6. 214 L41.634, 664 2270954 916,744
- Reclnssification (10,897 6Td4) (2415457 4007 1,041 972,680 |36 352,396 2 -
- (Hhier increnses/decrenses (7,760,952 GE2) §.508. 048 243 1,500,842, 745 (786,032,682) 1,534,625,895 1.522.805,624
5 P e e (5,073,785,715 332)  (2,260,221,759.811)  (14,007,386,147.234)  [170.684,510,006) {41’,3]3,5']‘1‘&' 551,55&,331,143,319]
NET BOOK VALLE
Q1A n2e 4,101, 864,660,311 oo, 261875324 3,196, 044, 193 669 T, 598,054,544 1190 1,248,056 H,296,680,031,903
3111272024 4 480 483 MW)3, 197 1 144,026,919 63D, 196, 668 (06 = T7,137,536,590 B 546,750 549 #4401 808,665,120

The historical cost of tangible fixed assets that have been fully depreciated but are still in use as of 31 December 2024, is VND 8,891,181,259 (As at 31
December 2023:VND 6,710,265,079,306),

The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets pledged as collateral for borrowings as of 31 December 2024, is VND 1,345,974,699,456 (As at 31 December 2023:
WD 2,047,770,7959,867).
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION ~ JSC Form No B09 — DNHN
No. | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Far the fiscal year
Dong Da Distriet, Hanai ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {ﬂ'l}HT*D.'I
{(Thare notzs are on feregral paer of and should he read in confunciion with the accompeaping finaagial staremenis)

13. FINANCIAL LEASE FIXED ASSETS

Beildings, Machinery, Total
structures euiprment
YRR YXD ¥ND
HISTORICAL COST
0112024 32 500 437,844 35, T4, (a0, N0 58,190,437.844
2122014 11159!{3'?,!44 35, 7000, 0D, D00 58,290,437
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
01012024 (4,047 453,443)  (6,098,750,000)  (10,146,203,443)
- Depreciation in year (1,129 521,888} {1,785,000,000) (2,914,521 BEE)
31/12/2024 (5,176,975,331) ﬁ.Eﬂl,'?H,ﬂ Il?!.l]ﬂ]g!ﬂglt
NET BOOK VALUE
D10120ES 18,542 L 29,601 250,000 H.IHEQWI
31122024 I?,nﬂ._l,dﬁ!,ﬂl& thEIEEﬂ{IM dﬂﬁg.ﬂlﬂﬁl
14. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Land use rights  Copyrights and Computer  Other intangible Tetal
patents Sofrware fized sssets
YnD Lik11] ¥ND YD ¥Yxp
HISTORICAL COST
101204 THE 483.574,710 I5]MOREO0 126, 7UE,154,0490 14,356 822,511 19,988 480,979
= Purchase im yer - - 5419874313 . 5.R10.874,233
= Oiher decreases (231,563, 199) . (413,572,000) 10,000,000 (1,135.235,199)

32024 787351911520 151898900 LI2000 487,182 _ 14.566822511 934, 473,120,011

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATTON

010172024 (156,043,605067)  (I5LBIEADD) (BS066046.004) (14307915412)  (255765.466.173)
- Amartizadon {14,287,216,193) - {11, TR1.037.414) (43.204,760F (25, 11E,158 567)
- Othet increase &0 4N 641 - 350,426,839 {165,854,839) 295,971,641
nmmee  _(SESQL50 _GSEERG_B6EIEEEH) (LSS (50991621
NET BOOK VALUE

Lz 622 439 968,752 - 41,730,138,855 E‘Iﬂlﬂlltﬂﬂ
322024 617,913,490,001 - 355]E830313 15147 653,481 467814

Cost of fully amorized intangible fixed assets but il in use as at 31 December 2024, is
VDTS, 102,581,270, (As at 31 December 2023; VND 42,654,800,555)
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Form Mo B09 - DN/HN
For the fiscal year
ended 31/12/2024

VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION —J5C
No. | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,
Dong Da District, Hanol

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'IY)
{1 Th&le nges ore an mWfowmethmemmﬁmwmmw

15, INVESTMENT PROFERTIES

nLAIn24 Tnerense in  Decrease in 317122024
year YEAT

YND YND YND YND

HISTORICAL COST 79,763,848 418 1,796, 725,199 - BO1S560,573,617

- Land use rights 255,797,525, 808 = - 255797525808

- Building 541,158, 775,630 1,796,725,199 - 542955500829

= Infrastructun: 2,807.546,580 - 2,B07,596,580

ACCUMULATED  (343,668,390.407)  (40,890,061,437) - (384,558,460,934)
DEPRECIATION

- Land use rights (54,459,720271)  (6,141,281,954) - {60,601,002,26%)

- Building (288,401 858,726) (33,896,919,171) - {3113837777.897)

- Infrastructure {714,820,500) (851,860,271) - (1,568.680.772)

NET BOOK VALUE 456,095,448.921 (39,053 .336,138) - 417,002,112,6%3

- Land use rights 201,337,805,537  (6,141.281,994) - 195,196,523,543

« Building 752 666,016,904 (32,100,193,972) 270,566,722,932

- Infrastructure 2.080,726,480 (£51,860,272) 1,238 866,208

Investment properties primarily include the land use rights at Cai Mep Port, the International
Maritime Trade Information Center Building at No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai, Dong Da,
Hanoi, and the Vimadeco Building at No. 163 Nguyen Van Trot, Fhu Nhuan District, Ho

Chi Minh Ciry, which sre currently being leased out.

The fair value of these investment properties has not been officially assessed or determined
a5 of 31 December 2024, However, basad on the rental situation and market prices of these
assets, the Executive Board of General Dircctors believes that the fair value of the
investment proporfics exceeds their carrying amount as of the financial year-end.

16 PREFAID EXPENSE

31122024 0LAOL 024

VHND VI

Short-term 79,824,461,533 B8 %53,920,088
- Insurance expense 21,284 996,584 21,284,996,684
= Dispaiched tools and supplies 18,423,061,033 18,423 061,033
- Fixed asset repair cost 14,61 8,279,026 14,618,279.026
- Otthers 25,498,124,890 34,527,583,345
Long-term 373,585,689,251 400,626,923,848
- Good will 1,508, 764,474 1,508 764,474
- Prepaid tand rental T0,522,564,934 70,522,864,934
- Repair costs awaiting allocation 226,194.470,270 2326, 194,470,270
- Tools end supplies expense mwaiting allocation 46,834,233 085 46,834,233,085
- Pre-operating expenses 5,169,139, 803 5,169,139.803
- Orthers 23 266,216,685 50.307,451,282

___453,410,150,884 489,480,843,936

|,,-u|'i.?',|-l|,. .
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION -.JSC
Mo. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,

Dong Da Diistrict, Hanoi

Form No B092 — DN/HN

For the fiscal year ended 3171272024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Thase modes are ar integral part of ana showld be read in confunciion with the sceampaing fimanciol sanementi)

17. LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS

Loog-term work in progress

Project of constraction of bousing for employees of Sai Gon Port -
Phase 2

Construction in progress

0

+ 4+ 4 4

Procusement of Mxed assels

Construction in progress

Priyect of 02 container ferminals No, 03, 84 - Lach Hupen goteway
port (1)

Consiruciion project of vards behind whorf N, 4.5
Consiruction tmvestrrer profect of Sai Gon - Hiep Phuoc (2]
Cai Cui Fort Phase (3}

Cai Cai Port Phase IT (4}

fmvesiment profecl 1 upgrade wharf No. 1

- ey Whon Port (3)

Ether prefecis

Major repair

N304 01012024
Cost Recoverable Yilue Coat Reocaverahle Valug
VNI VHD VD YHD
30,141,592,111 30,141,592,111 38,537, TH9, 457 38,937, 789,457
30,141, 502,111 39, 141,592,111 38,937 7RO 457 38,937, 7RO 457
3,489,131 060,852 3.480,131,0:60,852 2,475 407,619,717 2.475,402,619,717
45,360,004, 520 45,3609 50, 579 | 864,193,525 1664, 193,523
3,442,803,812.356 3,447 803 812,356 2.472.414.279.892 2472.414,270 802
3054812 152209 FA54.802. 053 00 1618 5,587, 322 1618005 587 322
F = 116,400,032 855 FI6400,932 8555
0056053743 30,056,053, 743 337 008 446 773 AFT00E 446,775
47,404,035 793 42 404,035,793 50433 908 §42 $0,433 908,642
847825475 B,647, 825475 B BET HIS LTS 647 825473
s = 71258538517 73,258 518517
206 883,745,136 200,883,743, 1 36 250, 558, 60, 706 256 568 040, 306
B57 343,997 957,343 997 1,124, 146,300 1,124,146,300
3,518,272,652,993 3,528.272,652, 003 = 2,514,340,409,174 = 2,514.340,400,174

o N
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C Form No BO9 - DN/N

Me. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, For the Tiscal year ended 3171252024
Deng Da District, Hanoi

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Thede mores are an eepem par o end shonlka Be read in cosfimetion wish the aeoompaing (indecia! Eovepeenti)

17.

LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS (CONT'IY)

(17 Project Information — Construction of container terminals No. 3 and No. 4 at Hai Phong Intemational Gateway Port {Lach Huyen Port Area), Hai Phong City

Investor: Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company

Purpose: To meet the development schedule of investment and construction projects for cconomic and social infrastructure in Hai Phong City

Location: Lach Huyen Port Aren, within Dinh Vu - Cat Hai Economic Zone, Cat Hai District, Hai Phong City

Total investment capital: VD 6,946 billicn

Project implementation and expected completion timeline: From 2020 to 2023

Investment capital sources: Estimated 55% loan financing and 45% equity capital

Project scope: Construction of 02 terminals for ships up to 100,000DWT (nearly 8,000 teu) with a total length of 750m, & width of 50m, Barge and
service terminal with a total length of 250m (including 50m width of the main berth), 15m wide for ships up ta 3,000 DWT (nearly 160 teu): Bank
protection embankment; System of storage vards, roads, awciliary works and technical infrastructure, synchronons equipment (mesting goods output
through 1.0 - 1.1 million tew'year) on an arca of 47 ha ; The main cquipment for exploitation: 06 STS cranes on the main wharf] 24 RTGs;, 02 RED
forklifis; 01 empty forklf; 50 tractors + trailers; 01 repair workshop crane, 08 vehicle scales at the port gate and Terminal Operating System (TO3)
software for port mansgement;

Status of the project as at 31 December 2024: The company has completed 55.41% of the total project volume. Phase | is expected (o be put into operation
in March 2025, with full project completion by the end of 2025.

{2) General information about the project

Irvestar; Baigon — Hiep Phuoc Port Joint Siock Companyo;

Address: D10C, D3 Road, Hiep Phuoc Industrial Park, Nha Be District, Ho Chi Minh City.

Purpose: To facilitate the relocation of the Nha Rong - Khaih Hoi Port of Sai Gon Port in accordance with Official Letter No, 1603/ TTg-CN dated 10
October 2006, issued by the Prime Minister, allowing investment in ports along the Saigon River.;

Scale: 36.06 ha;

Total investment capital: YND 2,777 billion;

Status of the project: The project has completed 800 meters of berths, two warchouses, and 118,000 m® of cargo yards. The remaining infrastructure is still
under simultaneous construction and operation, utilizing completed facilities. The expected completion date is May 2025.

On 12 October 2022, the Company submitted Document No. 99/5FH-2022 1o the Board of Directors and iz waiting for the Board of Directors’ approval
for the adjusted budget. Accordingly, the adjusted estimated management cost is VND 56,746,708,000. As of December 31, 2024, the provisionally

capitalized construction value is VND 1,520,891 772,965, The company i3 in the process of finalizing documentation to request approval for the
adjustment of investment cost estimates for the project.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - Faorm No B 09 - DN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Me. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phvong Mai Waed, For the fiscal year ended 311220324
Dong Da District, Hanol

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT™D)

{Thers meder are on imbegral part af mad shawld be read in corynnction with the accomprmivag Traclal siatements)

1.

LONCG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS (CONT'D)

(3} Investor: Can Tho Pert Joint Stock Company

Construction purpase: Land reclamation of 23.4 hectares, enhancing the best exploitation of the potential of the central maritime
exchange hub i the Mekong Delta region, creating a driving force to accelerate the economic development process, primarily for
Can Tho eity.

Construction location: Tan Phu Ward, Cai Rang District, Can Tho City.

Total investrment: 230.3 billion VND

Start and expected completion date: From 2002 to 2011, currently extended beyond the original schedule.

Project status as of 30/06/2024: The project has been completed and pot info operation for an arca of 9.5 hectares, The remaining
arca has just been leveled, and a scawall has been built, but necessary infrastructure for port operations has not been invested in yet.
The company is continuing fo invest to cemplete the project’s components for business operations.

{4) Investor; Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company

Construction purpose: Development of Cai Cui Port with a capacity of 4.0 - 4.5 million tons/year, recciving vessels with a capacity
of up to 20,000 DWT, enhancing the best exploitation of the potential of the central maritime exchange hub in the Mekong Delta
region, creating a driving force to accelerate the economic development process, primarily for Can Tho city.

Construction location: Tan Phu Ward, Cai Rang District, Can Tho City,

Total investment: 829.8 billion VWD

Start date: From 2009, currently extended beyond the original schedule.

Project status as of 30062024 The project has just carried out land reclamation and completed some small components. The
company is waiting to finalize legal procedures and raise funds to continue the investment and complete the project components for
business operations,
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VIETNAM MARTTIME CORPORATION —
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Mo 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,

Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form No B (/9 - DN

For the fiscal vear ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'DY)

(Theere wover are an dategrod ped of amd shoald be read tn confunciion with the accomponying fimancim stafdmeite

18. SHOHRT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

Shart-term

Redated Parties

= Construction Consultetion J3C for Maritime Building

= Cal Mep Internations] Termingl Co., Lid

- Kores BExpress Sei Gon Port Co Lid

= BP - PSA Intemational Port Co. Lid

- Da Mang Porl Logistios J5C

= & Meng Port Tughoat 1SC

- Cai Lan International Container Terminal Co_ Lid

- HPH Logistics 1SC

- Dong Do Masine J5C

= WOSCO Trading nnd Bervice 150

- BILsEA Intermational Comuiner Services loist Venbre

- Cum Lo Port Tughost pnd Maritme Service ISC

= Saipon Moritime Foint Stock Company

= Marilime Industrind Service Joint Stock Company

fMher pariies

- Halong Shipbuilding One Member Of Responsibility Co.,
Lid

= %W hotsam Development Bank

- Yietsain Walerway Construction Joint Stock Corporation
- Branch O

- Hai Phong Lifting Bguipment Co., Ld

= MITSUL ELS Cou, Lid

= Phu Xuan Consukting and Corstruction J5C

= Hamol Water Project Construction JSC

. Bnch Dang Shipbuilding Company Limited

= Crihers

ek = - &k

A tr S rE ] 0100024

Amount Ability-to-pay Amaunt Ability-to-pay
amaunt ansounl

YD VMDD VNI VND
1,698,0259,979,726 1,698,029,970,716 1,172, 462,471,665 1,180,342 877611

26,364, 572,900 26,564, 572,900 23,500, 746, 706 23,500,746, 796
2,0832,029,708 2,082, 0049 THE 5T, 026,467 157,926,402
49,500, 00D 44, 500,000 400,758,770 400, 7SR, 7T

TRT. 722,782 TRT, 722, TR2 1.418,136,333 1,418,136,333
142,441,583 42 441,583 3,217,264 3,217,264
3,115,967 T02 3.1 19,967,702 6,506, 497,031 6,596,497 03 1
9820, 865 (09 0. B26 B65 009 11,286,544,555 11,236,5944.555
357521 T RS 3575217879 275,686,818 275686, 818
230 620 463 239,620,463 16,053,552 16,053,552

Z 04 GTT 253 2,004,677,153 5294 16,000 529416000
S04 464 360 504 464,360 2467198 564 2,467,798, 564
33590, T06,293 3.3%6, T, 292 - -

- - 272,505,190 272,005,150

404 TH3 266 44,263, Lt Ak 561,000 ik, 561 0D
B4, 05 603 141,006,503 14,845,248 14,845,248
1,671 665,406 4526 1,671,665 406 LG 1,048,961, 724, 865 1,156, 841,130,815
32,067 042,734 32067, 142,734 32067, 142,734 32,067, 142,734
- - 186,085 462,583 186,085 462,581

16,665,300 635 16.,665,209,635 21,828,400,049 23.828.400,049
30,700 O, B00 30, 700, 00, i - i
534 268 307,500 534,268,317,506 - 5
246,886,354, 746 246, 386,354,746 7,B80,405,046 T, ER0, 408, M6
- - 17,724, 828,169 17, 724,828,159

72, 506,298,515 TIR06, 298,515 T2,806, 298,515 TLBDG6, 298,51 5
707,571,583, 690 07 571 981,600 ROR 569 186873 16440, 503 18
1,59&019.979,‘21 1,698 029,979,726 I,ITIME,#T],E 1,172,462,471,665
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'LY)
[ Thise modes are an ittagral pael of awd shooid be read b confunction with Tve cooompenying fironcid satemens)

13, TAX AND OTHER PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET

Tax payables

= Valoe added tax

- Export, import duties

- Comporate ncome tax
- Personal income fax

- Land tax, land rental {*)
- Environmental Taxes

= [ber faxes

Tax receivables

- Walue added tax

= Corporate ineome tax

= Personal income tax

- Land tax, land rental (*)

= Diher taxes

= Fees, charpes & other payables

] [ e Y

01/012024  Amount to be paid Amonnt actually 31/12:52024

in year pikd in year
YND YND VND VND
6,535,342, 963 153,437.934,538 148,515,399,706 [ 1,457.877,795
- 637,176,957 637,176,957 -
T16,792.395427 543,031,188,895 571,835,792.480 187.087,791,842
3.045473,398 22,634,830,397 71,208,518,410 14,471, 785,385
1, 163, R67,679 216,957,828,288 185,753,472,451 91,368,223,516
™ 458,107,000 A58, 107,000 .
ﬁdi!l‘ﬂljﬁ'}f 79808 223 298 32,1]35554@3 4,13Q,I5! 1,§"i'1
Hllﬂﬁﬂlléﬁ lg@lﬂéﬂﬂﬂﬂ lwﬁlgl :_!E-" ]ﬁlﬁég b 1]
0L/OL/2024 Amount actually  Amount to be paid JN/12/2024

paid im vear in year
VND YD WYMND VWD
5,449 237 851 427,548,046 3,104,943,574 2,771,842,323
B.377,124,607 110,434,852 243,601,401 R, 443 B68 058
1,442 219511 450,431,815 1,054, 1 B9 234 B3E.262,092
145,989 071 348 35,028,845,711 53,844, 037,033 127,174, 7B0,026
| 480,892 4,000,000 5,480,892 -
B.645,151 9 545,191 -
161 1) M,ﬂ!ﬂ,?ﬂ!,ﬁﬁ — 58,161,987.315 139.128.952,499
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19 TAX AND OTHER PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET (CONT'D)

*} Inchuding:

- Saigon Port has temporarily estimated the remaining land rental fees payable for the
MNha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port ares up to the time the Company signed an agresment
with Npoc Vien Dong Urban Development Investment Co, Lid. (Ngoc Vien Dongl,
the mvestor of the Wha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port Project, under Investment Policy
Decision No. 6815/QD-UBND dated 2% December 2016, issued by the People's
Committee of Ho Chi Minh City. The estimsted amount is VND 40,247,522, 180,
The company has engaged in multiple comespondences with the Ho Chi Minh City
Tax Department regarding land rental fees for this area for the period from 01
January 1, 2017 to Auvgust 31, 2017. However, a3 of the date of this report, the
company has not yet received a final response from the competent authority.

- Saigon Port has made temporary payments for land rentzl and lend tax for the
period from 2015 to 2020 at Tan Thuean | and Tan Thuan 2 Ports (Tan Thuan Dong)
as per the notifications from the District 7 Tax Department, Ho Chi Minh City,
totzling VIND 124 474,343 440, The tax authority applied the office rental unit price
to calculate the land rental fee for the entire leased area. However, in reality, most
of the leased area is used for berths and warchouses, which have lower rental unit
prices than those used by the tax authority. Accordingly, the company has sent
multiple official corespondences to the District 7 Tax Department - Ho Chi Minh
City and other relevant authorities regarding the determination of area, unit price,
and usage purpose for the leased land based on the mentioned netifications. As of
the date of this report, the company has not yet received a final response from these

ended 31/12/2024

autharities.
20. ACCRUED EXPENSES

3171272024 DLAO1/2024

YND YND

Shori-term 2.313,842,060,507 1,138,687 385,014
- Interast expense (%) 2,250,074, 143,398 2,189.977,156,047
- Ehiprepair expense 5,0135912,043 6,506, 366,832
- Expenses for public works of housing ares 15,389,773,022 15.750,687,210

for employees of Sai Gon Port

= Cost of services rended 6, 798,753,561 5,285528,151
- Land 1ax payaple 441,209 387 428,256,660
= Others 36,122 ,269,096 40,735.3%0.114
Long-term 13,852,563,322 14,310,819,982
- Land tax payakle 13,882,563,322 14,310,819,982

2,327,714,623,829 wz.mmﬁ

{*) Including payables of Vietnam Shipbuilding Finance Company Limited (VFC) with the balance
as at 31 December 2024, consisting of a VND loan tetaling VND 728.311,773,798, which includes
VNI 317,867,277,106 and USD 16,728,423.67 (as of 1 January 2024, the balance was VND
314,545,473,772 and USD 16,728,423.67). According to confirmation letters and loan interest
notifications from VFC, the interest receivable by YFC from Bien Dong exceeds the amount
recorded by Bien Dong as of | January 2024, and 31 December 2024, by USD 59,208,393.37 and
USD 63.541,824.47, respectively. This loan inferest relates to the principal debt used to finance the
construction of the 1,730 TEU W22 container ship, which was transferred 1o Bach Dang
Shipbuilding One Member Co., Ltd (Ses Note 8 — Other Receivables and Note 24 — Loans and
Finance Lease Liahilities for more details.)
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.

22.

UNEARNED REVENUES

Short-term

Revenue received in advance for leasing
Premises

Revenue récéived in advance fram sea
transport activities

Revenue recelved in advance from port
operation activities

Crhers

Long-term

Revenue received in advance for leasing
premises

OTHER PAYABLES

Short-term
= Trade union fee
- Bocial insurance
- Health insuranca
= Unemployment insurance
- Paysble on equitization
- Short-term deposit, collateral recoived
- Oiher payables
+ Dividend, profli payables
+ Imterest payables 1o Bank and other
s fihations (1)
+ Poayments on beholl"of and arnount

raceived o pay shipping lines an behalf of

shipping comparnies
+ Employees’ PIT has mot pet been

finalized

+ Companzation costy for the relocation af

Hevame Diew Part (2]
Chhars

31272024 DLOL2024

YND YNNI
25,249,417,363 19,997,232,312
3642452775 4,009,026,1%4
4,267 032,584 4,792,208 945
10,151,840,748 0,535,048,335
7,188,091,256 1,660,948 836
44,734, 415,104 44,662,204,284
44,734 415,104 44,662,204 284
—  G9.983N32.467 __ 64.659.430,590
3122024 oL01/2024

VND YD
1,542,820,618,819 1,414,230,911,311
10,041,204,296 10,081,222, 308
376,559,352 21,280,559
93,893,825 G9,2 58,659
165345568 3,728,933
160,235,205,791 18,104,592,423
18,333,909.476 18.329,830,505
1,353,574,320,511 1,367,594,997 484
I5057. 717 824 71 537 527412
P44 405253421 §037 546,445,550
71, 740,689, 008 P2 a1 7 408 90T
6.1001,369.870 5, 787,994,285
04020613821 .
2322 2R GT6 46T 180,055,623, 326

il

. rai g

W N e

=

-

P



YIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

¢ These noses are an infegra! parl o and should be read in confieection willk the aecomgay|

L.

OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Long-term
- Long-term deposit, collateral received
= Other payables

+ Paypabie 1o Fien Dong Feorl Urban
Development Tnvestment Co,, L1 In
advances for the relacation and support of
emptovees 13

+ Payable fo Stare kudget in capital
advarces for the implementation of Seigon
- Hiep Phuoe Port construction imestment
orofest (4}

+ Tempararilp fnorease in the origial
cosi of ship (Lucky Swar, Blue Star, Fosco
Surarise) (3}

+ Skipbuilding Industry Corporation -
Advance capital (6)

(kkers

Other short-term payables are related
parties

867 - 884 Part Imteraational Container
Services Joint Venture Company

5P = P5A Imternational Porf Ca,, Ld
SITC - Dink Vu Logistics Co. Lid

Cua Lo Port Tugboat and Maritinee
Sarvices Co., Lid

Thi Vai General Port JEC

Da Nang Pori Logistics JSC

Da Nang Port Tugboat J5C

Vinashin Vien Duong Transport Co., Lid
Bien Dong Logistics Juint Stock Company
Maritime Construction Consuring Joint
Stock Compury (CME)

(1) Including:

seatararaia)
311272024 01/01/2024
YHD YHND
2,381,238,467,8456 2,407,085,935,506
104,315,719,784 62,170,833,632
2,276,922,748,062 2.344.915,101,874
&50,000, 000,000 S50, 000,000, 000
$99,000 000,000 99,000, 0040,000
437172200, 784 516,672 201,784
197,025,462 572 191,023,462,572
149,725,083, 706 188,217 437,518

5,924,059,086,665 3,821 316,846,817

31112024 011012024

VND YD

34, 875,403,269 29.240,616,326

4. 455,468 624 g41, 043,603

484,526,024 729,914,777

- 7100708

E{J;Jm- m =

224 573 843 I14,6406. 277

- 5,136,480

1157220129 57,318 160

28,502,905, 649 27,283, 346,321

10,000, 200 -
92.411,613

Interest payable to the Vietnam Development Bank — Can Tho Regional Branch related
to a loan agresment for the investment and construction of the Hau Giang Shipyard
amounts to approximately VNID 28.2 hillion. After the debt rescheduling period wnder
Besolution No. 107/NQ-CP dated 10 October 2017, issued by the Government, this loan
continues to acerue interest at the bank's announced interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Thase mates are a0 integral part of and thowld be road in confmection wish the accompanying financial stements)

2L

)

(3)

(4)

OTHER FAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Interest payable to Shipbuilding Industry Finance One Member Limited Liability
Company (VEC), amounting to over YND 26.7 billion, related t a loan agreement for
the investment and construction of the Hau Giang Shipyard. This project was part of the
USD 600 million forsign losn-funded project portfolio, as stipulated in Decision No.
1986/QD-CNT-TCKT dated 26 June2007, issued by the Board of Directors of Vietnam
Shipbuilding Industry Group (Vinashin), with an interest ratc of 9.3% per anmum and &
loan value of YND 28.6 billion. As of now, the Hau Giang Shipyard Project has been
permanently discontinued under Official Letter No, 403/TTg-KTN dated 23 March
2012, issued by the Prime Minister. This foreign loan was restructured under Resolution
Nao. 107/N0-CP dated 10 October 2017, issued by the Government, with a preferential
interast rate, and the company is cumrently accruing inlerest at a rate of 1.2% per annum.
However, the Company and VFC have not yet reached an agreement on the applicable
interest rate for the loan principal from VFC since the issuance of Resolution No.
107/NQ-CP. VEC has not yet implemented the debt restructuring under the resolution
and continues to apply the contractual interest rate of 9.5% per annum to the Company.
Interest payable to the Vietnam Development Bank under loan sgreements for investment
in shipbuilding projects, with a total value of approximately YND 490 billion.

In 2024, Post of Hai Phong Joint Stock Company (Hai Phong Port), a subsidiary, received
over VNI 319 billion from the People’s Committee of Ngo Quyen District to facilitate the
relocation of Hoang Dieu Port, in accordance with Decision No. 3983/QD-UBND and Ne.
3984/0D-URND dated 22 December 2023, issued by the People's Committee of Ngo Cuyen
District, regarding land recovery; Decision No. 3982/QD-UBND dated 22 December 2023,
Decision No. 4274/QD-UBND dated 28 December 2023, Decision Mo 34700D-UBND
dated 15 March 2024, and Decision No. 245%0D-UBND dated 1 October 2024, issued by
the People’s Committes of Mgo Quyen District, regarding the approval of compensation
plans for Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company. Of this amount, YND 34.4 billion was
allocated for msset relocation compensation. As of 31 December 2024, the remaining
balance of the relocation compensation costs for Hoang Dieu Port is YND 90 balhon.
Payable to Ngoc Vien Dong Urban Development Investment Co., Lid (Ngoe Vien Dong).
This payahle relates to capital advances provided by Ngoc Vien Dong in response w the
capital requirements of Saigon Port Joint Stock Company from 2013 to 2015, as approved
by the Ministry of Transport, for the constrestion and operation of Phase 1 of the Saigon -
Hiep Phuoe Port project (now under the management of Saigon Hiep Phuoc Port foint Stock
Company, 8 sahsidiary of the Corporation), Under the handover agreement dated 31 August
2017, Ngoe Vien Dong agreed to tempararily return the original condition of the premises to
allow the Compeany to continue managing, operating, and conducting business at the Nha
Rong - Khanh Hoi area while the construction of Saigon - Hiep Phuoe et remains
incomplete, The Company is responsible for campleting the refocation and assel handling
process, provided that Ngoc Vien Dong completes all legal procedures related to land use
rights. During this period, the Company will not bear any related land usc costs (effective
from 31 August 2017). Onoe the relocation process is completed, the seitlement of this
capital advance will be carried out between Saigon Port, the Ministry of Finance, and Ngoc
Vien Dong,

This payable relates to an advance received from the State Budget in 2009 and 2010 by
Saigon Port to finance the investment and construction of the Saigon - Hiep Fhuoe Port
project, which is now managed by Saigon Hiep Phuoe Port Joint Stock Company, a
subsidiary of the Compary. According to Decision No. 46/2010/QD-TTg dated 24 June
2010, issued by the Prime Minister, this capital advancs must be repaid to the State Budget
once the construction of the Saigon - Hiep Phucc Port praject is completed. As of now, the
project remains under construction.
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11,

13,

OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

(5) Provision for payable to increase the cost of fixed assets at Vietnam Ccean Shipping Joint
Stock Company. The Company is in the process of finelizing documentation to settle the
cost of the vessels Lucky Star, Blue Star, and Vosco Sunrize, including prepayments made
to Bach Deng Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company and Nam Trieu
Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company.

{6) Payable to Victnam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC). This payable relates to
funding with interest received from SBIC for operations during the peried from its
establishment until 2008, specifically for the investment in the Hau Giang Shipyard Project,
This projest was permanently discontinued under Official Letter Mo, 403/ TTg-KTN dated
29 March 2012, issued by the Prime Minister. The interest accrued on this debt was
restructured under Resolution No. 107/NQ-CP dated 10 October 2017, issued by the
Government, which stipulated the cancellation of accrued interest. As.of 31 December 2024,
SBIC has not vet implemented the Government’s resolution and continues 10 notify the
Company of interest charges annually.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax liabilities
Jnxnd 012024
YIND VNI
Daferred income tax liabilitics ansing from 468, 876,542,100 493 673,403,083

deductible temporary differences

468.876,542,100  493,673,493,083
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
i Theae modex are an dinggral poet of and showld be reced i confumetion with the aconmpenying finarciol siatemenis)

14, LOANS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

01/01/2024 During the year 31/12/2024
Amount Ability-to-pay Increase Decreass Amount Ability-lo-pay
amount amount
VNI YD YHI¥ VM YD VMDD
Short-term loan 1,496,330,731,754  1,496,330,731,754 247,892,298,150  463,549,043,559  1,780,673.986345  1,280,673,956,345
Shart-termn losn . B5.441,441,303 H5ad] 441,303 G0, 865,128,033 64,577,418,610 117,729,150,726 117,729,150,726
Current porion of 1,410,880, 200,451 1,410,885, 200451 158,027, 170,017 A0E. 571 624 049 [,161.944,835619 1,162,944 835,615
lomg-term boan
Long-term loan 1,792,085,060,787 1,792 085,060,787 665,970 417,669  458,505,795,615 1,909,54%9,682, 841 1,990 549, 682 Bd1
Total 3288415,702541 _ 3 78R415792,541 __ 913862715819 _ 922,054839.174 _ 3.280.123.669,186 __3,280.223,669.186
Short-term borrowings
Curreney Imterest rate/year GGuaranice ILzi2024
WM
Vietnam Shipbuilding Finance Co.Ltd (1) usD Specified in each loan agreement Unsecured 50 080,000,000
Vietmam Development Bank YHND Specified in cach loan agreement Collaternl 1,051 839,588,728
ODA due loan (3) UsSD Specified in each loan agrecment Unsecured 23,523,799,299
Oithers YND Bpesified in each loan agreement Unsecured, Coflateral 146,230,598,318
1,280,567 45
35
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{(Thase wotes ane an integrel port of and should be raad fr confmaction with the accompenying financial satements)

14,

(1)

LOANS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

Lanp-term horrowings
Currency Interest ratefyear Guarantee 322024
YND
Viemam Development Bank VD Specified m each foan agreement Unzecared, Coblmeral 248 406,205 507
Viemam Shipbwilding Finance Ce. Ltd (L} UsD Spesified in ench loan sgreement Unsecured 46,495,501 428
FEA VietHam PreLtd (2) LIS Specified i ench loan agrecment Unsecured 435,459,330, 000
Long-term OO lean (3} LsD Specified in each loan agreement Unseoured AB1LI15471.5043
[a Mang City Investment apd Developmes Fusd YHD Specified in cach loan agreement Unseeurad 257 872 R0 DD
Joint Btock Commercial Bask for Invesiment and
Development of Vietriam - Hanai Branch WHD Specified in each loan agresment Lnsecured, Collatersl 225, 542,512,983
(tkers WD Specalied o esch loan agreement Unsecured, Collateral 118,457 768 080
!!mg&gl
Including:

The loan of Bien Pong One Member Limited Lisbility Shipping Company (Bien Broag) with Shipbuilding Industry One Member Limited Liability
Finance Company (VFC) had a balance as of 31 December 2024, of VN59,080,000,000 D (as of 31 December 2023, it was VD 59,080,000,000).
This loan was used to finance the 1730 TEU V22 Container Shipbuilding Project, which was handed over to Bach Dang One Member Limited Liability
Shipbuilding Company [Bach Dang). Specifically, in sccordance with Resolution No. 317/MNQ-CNTT dated 23 Movember 2015, issued by the Vietnam
Shipbuilding Industry Corporation, which approved the transfer of debt recipients from the entrusted capital ol the Corparation at the VFC regarding
the reallocation of the 1,730 TEU - V22 new shipbuilding investment project from Bien Dong to Bach Dang, and the handover minutes signed oo 5
August 2015, between the Company and Bach Dang, Bien Dong has transferred this project, including the principal loan and related interest, to Bach
Dang from 5 August 20105,

The laan from VEFC was used (o implement investment projects of Hau Giang One Member Limited Liability Shipyard Compeny socording Lo the list
of projects nsing the $600 million foreign loan fund stipulated in Decision No, 1986/Q0B-CNT-TCKT dated 26 June 2007, of the Board of Directors of
the Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Group. The loan carries an interest rate of 9.5% per year, with a loan term of 10 years from the first disbursement
date and a prace period of 2 years. The initial principal loan balance in VND was mutually agreed upon by the parties to be converted to USD at
1,870,144,9]1 USD. This loan is secured by assets formed from the loan capital. The loan was restructured according to Government Resolution MNo.
LOTNQ-CP dated 10 October 2017, As of 31 December, the company has cumulatively paid VFC VND 3.5 billion, equivalent to approximately
USD.146,135.96 Through the Vinashin restrocturing agreement, all outstanding debt hes been agreed upon by creditors o be defeered until 30
Diecemnber 2025, with an interest rate of 1% per year, which will be calculated at the end of the period.
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{Thive nedes ere o (el poar of and ehoakd be reodd (n cogmetion with the eooompanpieg foorcial safements)

24,
(2)

{3}

i

LOANS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

Loan details:

PSA Vittnam Pte. Lid., Saigon Port Joimt Stock Company, and Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC are shareholders contributing capital to SP-PSA
International Port Co., Ltd. The shareholders agreed to provide a loan to SP-PSA Intermational Port Co, Ltd. under a shareholder loan agreement dated
26 Augnst 2008, with a total oan ameount of TSD 33,000,000, including phese A of USD 28,196,202.53 and phase B of USD 4,803,797.47. PSA
Vietnam Pre. Ltd. advanced the entire loan amount, Vietnam Maritime Corporation and Saigon Port will take on the debt with PSA Vietnam Fre. Lid,,
with a total principal loan amount of USD 16,830,000, correspending 1o their 51% ownership in the company.

Loan Purpose: The loan was used for SP-PSA Intermational Port Co., Ltd. to cover project development costs, design, engincering, procurement of
materizls and equipment, construction, operations, instellation, completion, financing, mainienance, marketing, replacement, and repair of a two-berth
container port located in Phu My Town, Tan Thanh District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Provinee. This includes a 600-meter berth and several quay cranes.
Loan Interest Rate: The intercst rate applied under the Shareholder Loan Agreement was based on the 6-month LIBOR rate. From 16 December 1023,
PSA has notified that the interest rate will be temperarily caleulated based on the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR).

As per the Supplemensary Agreement (signed on 26 May 2008, between SP-PSA, its sharcholders, and Calyon), all outstanding debis of SP-PSA
International Port Co., Lid, that were not advanced by shareholders must be repaid immediately upon request by the shareholders or the advancing
shareholders. Furthermore, under the Sharcholder Loan Agreement, all dividends and other distributed amounts (if any, for Vietnam Maritime
Corporation and Saigon Port) under the Joint Venture Agreement or Articles of Association will be prioritized for repaying the principal loan (and
accrued interest) until the loan is fully setiled. At the time of preparing the consolidated financial statements, Vietnam Maritime Corporation and
Salgon Port are still in discussions with relevant parties to finalize the contract addendum and the basis for calculating receivable and payable interest,
Including:

The loan balance under Loan Agresment No. 02/2004/TDNN, dated 21 December 2004, signed between the Hai Phong Branch of the Development
Support Fund and Hai Phong Part (now Port of Hai Phong Joint Stock Company). The loan was taken to invest in equipment for the "Hai Phong Port
Upgrade and Renovation Project - Phase 11" project, It is an unsecursd loan with an interest rate of 1.3% per year, with the final principal and interest
payment due on 20 August 2029, As of 31 December 2024, the outstanding principal balances in Japanese Yen (JFY) is JPY 784,283,500.00 (equivalent
e VIND 121,509,042 ,655), of which the current portion of long-term debt due is JPY 136,856, 700.00 {equivalent to VND23,523.799,299)

The recognized debt value related to Berths No. 04 and No. 05 and the container yard at Chua Ve Terminal - Hai Phong Port, along with other
allocated costs, was recorded based on Decision No, 4196/QB-BOTVT, issved on 25 MNovember 2015, by the Ministry of Transport, The total
recognized debt value is VIND 383.3 billion,

According to Decision No. 4196/QB-BGTYT and the Minutes of Inspection and Determination of State Capital Value, along with the settlement of
proceads from the equitization of Hai Phong Port One Member Limited Liability Company at the time of its official transition to a joint-stock
company, which was signed between the Working Group of Vietnam Maritime Corporation and the company's representatives on 10 October 20186, the
company has temporarily adjusted the value of the aforementioned assets and equipment and recognized the loan valuc at a total amount of YWD 383.3
biltion {including VMD 342.1 billion as the sattled value of the two berths and VND 412 billion as other allocated costs for the equipment package
within the project). This recognition was retrospectively adjusted by the company as of 1 July 2014 (the date the company cfficially fransitioned inte 2
Joint-stock company).
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24,

LOANS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

At present, the borrowing and repayment plan (including loan term, repayment plan, intcrest raie, and security erms], as well as the curmency of the
dett recognition (Vietnamese Dong or Japancse Yen), has not been approved by the relevant State management agencies at the time of debt
recognition. Therefore, the comparny has temporarily recorded these loans in Vietnamese Dong and has acerued interest expenses fior the peried from |
July 2014, to 31 December 2019, at an interest rate of 9.5% per year, plus a re-lending cost of 0.2% per year. In 2020, parsuent (o Resolution M,
71/NQ-CHP dated 12 Jane 2020, of the Board of Directors of Port of Hai Phong Joint Stock Company, the company ceased accruing interest expenses
from the beginning of 2020.

In Official Latter No. 8715/BTC-PLN dated 23 July 2018, from the Ministry of Finance and Official Letter No. 10582/VPCP-KTTH dated 1 November
2018, from the Government Office, the Government Office agreed with the Ministry of Finance's proposal to review the basis for recognizing the value
of Berths No. 4 and No, 5, as well as the associated loan conditions. The Government Office also approved the policy of re-lending the equipment costs
under & mechanism similar to that approved by the Prime Minister in Official Letter No. 1596/CP-QHQT dated 25 October 2004. Specifically, the re-
lending interest rate in Japanese Yen is 1.5% per year. Additionally, the Ministry of Finance has required a re-cxamination of the company's
equitization process (since the setflement of State capital value at the time of equitization has not yet been approved by the competent authorities).
Once the Ministry of Finance officially approves the loan end repayment plan, the company will adjust its financial statements sccordingly, if
NECCSRATY.

On 11 MNoversher 2022, the Government Office issned Official Letier No. 7642VPCP-CN, conveying the directive of Deputy Prime Minister L& Vin
Thinh, requiring the Ministry of Transport (MOT) to lead coordination with the Ministry of Finance and relevant agencies to study and carefully
review the possible solutions for managing and operating Berths No. 4 and No. 5 of Chua Ve Terminal, ensuring that the approach aligns with the
actunl asset conditions, operational management, and relevant legal regulations.

On 28 September 2023, the Ministry of Transport issued Official Letter No. 1088L/BGTVI-TC o the Ministry of Finance, seeking inpul on & draft
Decree on the management, use, and operation of maritime infrastructure assets (which will replace Decree Mo, 43201 8NB-CP dated 12 March
2018), In this proposal, the Ministry of Transport suggested adding provisions in the transitional clauses to allow Hal Fhong Port to manage and
operate Berths No. 4 and No. 5 (rather than leasing them), should the proposal be approved. On December 24, 20124, the Government Office issued
Notice No. 569/ TB-VPCP, summarizing the conclusions of Deputy Prime Minister Tran Hong Ha at a mecting regarding the Government's drafi
decree on the management, use, and operation of inland waterway infrastructure assets, The Deputy Prime Minister agreed not to include transitional
handling provisions in the decree for maritime infrastructure assets formed from State capital. At the same time, the Minisiry of Transport and the
Ministry of Finance were instructed to urgently report a solution for handling these assets.
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25 OWNERS' EQUITY
751 CHANGES IN OWNERS' EQUITY
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NOTES TO THE INTERIY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CﬂNT[HUEIl}
(Thent rodés ave an integral part of and should be read in comjumction with the accompoaying finascial statsmants)

75. OWNERS' EQUITY (CONT'D)
752  DETAILS OF OWNERS' EQUITY

311212024 01/01/2024
VND __ Rate VND _ Rate
- Statc contribuled capital  11,942,133,000,000 99.47%  11,942,133,000,000 99.47%
- Other shareholders £3,747,000,000  0.53% 63,747,000,000  053%

—12,0EFE0,000,000 — T00% WW

253  EQUITY TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS

Iovestment equity of owners
Equity in kepinning of period
Increased equity in period
Detuted equity in period
Equity in the end of period
Dividend distribution

16, OFE-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Forelgn currencies
LisD
ELR
IPY
RELB
Doahiful debt written-oll [ VINLD)

Year 2024 Year 2023
VYND VND
12,005,680,000,000  12,005.830,000,000
12,005,880,000,000  12,005,280,000,000
(46.326,570,024) -
31/12/2024 017012024
55,796,818.42 54.396,030.11
2,7TR5.93 8, 111.73
45,593,000 44 00000
570044, 18 201686944
47,978,313,903.00 43,713,886,09¢
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Mo. 1 Dao Doy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,
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Form No. B9 - DN/HN
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ended 3171272024

NOTESTO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These noter are an ialegral pare of and should be recd i comymeet e with the acrampaming narckl riaremento

7. REVENUE FROM SALE OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Revanue from salke of gonds

Revenue from randering of services

+ Transporiation

+ Revenue from porl operation services and
marriiime BRI

+ Office worakmce fearing

+ Chither serviges

Revenne from construction confract

18. COST OF GOODS S0LD

Cost of goods sold

Cost of services rendered

- Trovspariaiion

- Cagt af goods sold for porf operation
rervices and maritime services

- Office, warshouse lsasing

- Oihers

Beversal of provision

Cost of construction conract

29, FINANCIAL INCOME

Irzerest incoms

Grin from disposal of fnencial investment
Dividends and profits raceived

Forelgn exchange gain on year

Foreign exchange gain on year-end
revialualion of monetary items

Other finsncial income

Year 2024 Year 2023

VNI VND
4,307,603,925955 1,813,722,701 028
12,655,560,346,553 10,990, 775,157 002
4473057, 158,004 4 228 535,778,235
76856, 700 204,604 o401 153,555, 5649
345,058.353,334 2580,119,839,771
I50,847, 400,951 J0.505 R83,412
6,448, 708,228 15,668,265,183

IEIH?ITIFE'J'I!HE 12,RI0. 166,123,113

Year 2024 Year 2023
YND VND
4,250,969 858,767 1,780,357,537,601

2,891,007,711,882
4,029.551,798,937

8,617,404 367 959
3.755,129.468.316

5,438,750, 405,749 4,572 194,678,306
313,482, 677,004 238,909,845 368
109.222,830 192 526816072 0359

(134,301,850) (1.445.698,150)
6,042, 710,478 _ 14,242 6BB.103

14,147,885 979,177 1041 703

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND WND
464,476,358,397 472,748,962,576
62,425.431,766 15,732,043 260
36,214,958 243 39637, 740,510
20,026,148,452 B4,102.445 157
T7,801,052,806 43,330,914,952
9,545,701 692 %.068.181,020
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION - JSC Form No. B0 — DN/HN
Mo, 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, For the fiscal year
Drong Da District, Hanoi ended 31/12/2024

NOTES T0O THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(Thesw nater ard an integral part gf end showld be read is conjuntion with the accompariing fingncial stefements)

. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Year 2024 Year 2023
VNI VND
Interest expenses 372,851,242,087 202,077,736,231
Expenses/Loss from selling stocks, disposal 35,269 320 369,359,063
of fnancial investments
Foreign exchange loss on vear 147 470,228,103 44,407 145,002
Foreign exchange loss on year-end 22 760,984,116 10,626,432 665
revatuation of monetary items
Provisioning and reversal of financial T2 322018476 (679,831,836)
ITVEstment Tesarves
Mher financial expenses 1,420,446,897 f6d, 03 306
T 61679088999 357553794511
31, SELLING EXPENSES
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND. VIND
Labour expenses 14,560, 771,459 13,207, 709,003
Depreciation cxpenses 166,066 567 238,464 483
Expense of outsourcing services 95.251,334. 265 96,636,380,153
Other expenses in cash 27535032 ORE 27.950,868,003

138313204 378 I3%ﬂlﬂ

32, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Year 2024 Year 2013
VND VND
Reaw materials, 1o0ls and supplias axpenses 12,570,375,837 35,136,903.616
Labour expenses T57978,711,994 T15365670,351
Depreciation expenses 42274 643 413 3E,042, 833,962
Tanes, fees and cherges 32.950,862,532 20,458 207,690
Prowvizion / reversal of provigion expenzes 26,827,030,643 (125.900,173,9200
Expense of oulsourcing services [ 43,216,754 698 91,851 EED 35K
Onher expersas in eash 306.935.911.803 270,541 664 838
L343354750.000 __ 1045493.993.895
33, OTHER INCOME
Yenr 2024 Year MI23
YNR VND
Grain from Nguidation, disposal of fixed T20.352,895,601 83,566, 105,871
AsEELE
Loan interest [s writien off, debi strusiune 382,276,365 958 189,124,024, 198
Incame from compensation for the transfer 23,593 058,426 -
of retocated assets at Floang Dica Port
Incame from insurance compensation 8.011,971.036 146, 967,972,879
Income from reimbursement of the Cai Lan 35,282,863 424 -
project
Income from revaluation of assels for 25,201 264,037 -
capital contribution
Othors IR 348 124 352 54, 1ER.TEZ, 790

— A5 MR TIT 370 _ 434.846.855.838
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
[Thess mibes are ot integrad prel of amd shauld be reod (n corforction with the aeesmEanyg fimaaciof shefeme mig)

34. OTHER EXFENSES

Net book value and expenses from
liquidation, disposal of fixed assets
Depreciation, loan interest and other costs
of Hau Giang Shipyard projec

Expenses from repairing damaged property
Fines, tax arrears, administrative fincs
Others

as. BASTX EARNING PER SHARE

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
3,154,470,854 167,353,247
19,544,026,993 16483 984, 103
3 5{’;&’3‘;23‘1-735

12,872, 192,501 14 289 R19.510
36,649,539 422 36,771.188,576

73 770 139.196,627,975

Year 2024 Year 2023
Met profit after tax of shareholders in parent 2,021,014,444 518 1,162.313,199.317
P :
Earming alloczted to commaon shares (VD) 2,021,014 444 818 1,162,313,198.317
Average outstanding commeon shares during the 1,200, 588,000 1,200,588,000
Year
Earning per share (VIND/share) 1683 968
36, OFERATION COST BY NATURE

Year 2014 Year 2023
VND VND

Raw materials, tools and supplies |, 954 356, 181,564 1,842,028 813,008
Labour expenses 2 844 440 962 974 2.543,46%9007 819
Depreciation expenses 1,525, 135,144,321 1,317.079.950 847
Taxes, fees ard charges 77,273 557 442 34 830,653,289
Provision / reversal of provision expenass B3,274,790,696 (122,256,295,451)
Expense of outsourcing services 4,142,667 332,614 3.819%.051,120,885
(ther expenses in cash 960,415, 809,885 BO0OETT.G08 655
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(These nover are an integral part of and should be read in confunction with the accompamying financinl statements)

37, OTHER INFORMATION

371 SEGCMENT REPORTING

For the fiscal year ended 317122024

M revemie from sle
of gocds nad rendening.

sorvices

Profit frem business
acilvliles

Toial cost af

pequisiticn of Gred
ASSG
Linallooed esoeix

Twoksl naseis
Unnllocuted abdiles

Totdal linkilities

13,157,984 3RIEIEG

{179 TEL 960 540)

Transporl ssvice Port operstion  Office, warchouse Sales activibies Other netivities Total Troen skl Exception Granid toial
webivitles  services und mprlibme lonsing APEEEENER
BEFVicEs
VNI VED VD AL VD VNI ¥HD VR
A A4 S80 307 333 T 006, TOR, 406l 145058 353 334 A 07,600 425955 ST 206 190 1T [, 261,20, THLA65 & I, P60 348, BT, 465
435, 62801246  LATOMEIIS  J1LSTSE76,30 SEADINGT,IB8  AZ000,654,500 2,413,362,201,18% 1,813,362,101, 184
— ____ ] e T ——————
| 847, 359, B4 T ES6 = 1547 539 BT RGE
41 I0d FRE AT 141 (N0 A4 004 BT 15 L) 30,4824 570,032,089
- ~ - . aenniie _ (ORI _ s
—_

13,008,273,01%,Tat

i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(These notes are an brtegral part of and should be read i confunctiod with the aocompanying faanclal sialements)

L |

Fort he fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2023

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT D)

Transport sevice Port operatbon Office, warchouse Sales welivities  Oiber activities Tatal from all Exceplion Grand tatal
nctivities services amil Tensing sepEinls
maritise services
YHD 'I.fhlll_ o1 VNN hdil WD YN ¥
Met revenue from sabe 4,221 %R0, 125 510 f,401,153,555, 554 250, 119,830,771 1BI3, 722,701,028 i, 0008 240 505 12,805,009 470,497 - IZAL5 01 ATOATT
ol gouds and remdlesing
senvices
Frafit from business 471, 188,702,738 1,825,048,883,012 S1,209.504,403 33,365,163,427  21,210,133,207 2,403,014,576,794 = 2,405,014 876,70
et vities
Tl post of 17023341 327 - TAT 2R 34, 82Y
acsquisithon of fxed
HL o K
Sepment assets 27,706, 780,865,046 (171,238,135, 762} 27535428, 720,284
Total wscts - E— : __ILI06T6RES0  (ITIIShINGTGH  DSISAIIIIH
Sgerment lzbilites 12,200, 198 523,676 {130,051 B75.977) 12,189, 1 13 677 659
Toial Bakdliiles = - - - - M ilﬁlﬁﬁﬂﬂ ]]IIH'IIIJIET?ED
= L —
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These mater ars en intagred part of and should be read in confinedon with the acenmpdy img franzinl siatements)

. OTHER INFORMATION (CONT'D)

371 RELATED FARTIES

In addition 1o the balances with related pariies stated in the Notes above, the Corporation alzo
has the following transactions with related parties:

Transation with related parties

Revenus from sale of goods
- DaNang Port Tugbost 15C
- Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Lid

= WOSCD Agency and Logistics J5C
- Internatioral Shipping and Labour

Cocpertion JSC
- Kiorea Express Sai Gon Port Co,, Lid

= What Viet Intemational Transport Joint
Venture Compamy

- Bien Dong Logistics 15C

= Vietnam Sea Transport and Chartering 15C

- Vinalines Honda Logistics Vies Wam Co,,
Ltd

= Dong Do Marine 1SC

= i Lan International Centaimer Terminal
2o, Ld

- VOECO Trading and Servics JSC

- Congtrection Consultation JEC for
Maritime Building

- Transportation and Trading Services 1SC

- BP-55A Intemmational Container Senvices

Joint Wentare Compary
= BITC Dinh Vu Logistics Co., Ltd

Relationship
Aszocisfed company
Associsted comparry

Associsted company
Asgocisted company

Aseocisted company
Associated company

Associated company
Asgociated company

Associated company

Associnted company
Azznciated company

Associated compsny
Associated compary

Associated comparry
Asencizted compamy

Agsocizted compamy

Cong tv THHE THHH KM Cargo Services Hii Fhang

« Cua Lo Port Tughoat and Maritime

Service J5C
- NYK Autologistics( Vietnam) Co. Lid

- Thi Vai General Port JEC
- Dia Mang Part Lagisties 15C
. Saigon Maritime Joint Stock Company

= HPH Logistics 15C
= Quy nhan Port J5C

Associsted company
Associsted company

Associated company
Associated company
Associsted company

Associsted company
Associated company

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

B 435.029.031 f.820.244 820
B B9, 754,005 59.110.528,540
13009750081 T853.576.665
1.021. 862 985 408861 M5
T.B90.402 B4 3.834.237. 8463
B AR5 526 1.074.654.491
B.501.845.361 5135312752
B GG ARG 12727
11.040.238.504 B.275 420,716
2149631 812 LG65.659.799

4. 109 572 165 1225959785
063,915,332 1.245.443.797

= 2160000

- 0% 53231
145188213402 77300 790.820
562,503 AT0 1.127278.9248
0564659 2R2557.817
56227000 2.712.531.900
T23.900,000 043,702, 00
37.352.831 .60 23.002.635.638
JRS 01 RARD 447 581850

4 560 92T 135 Q162183125
&0, 774000 53,334,500
3L SRS RIG058 TIRSRLTOIRETT
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{There mores are an inegrad part af oad dhowlt be read in confunction with the aecompanpiag financil statements)

37 OTHER INFORMATION (CONT'IN

37.1 RELATED PARTIES (CONT'D)

Belatioaship
Furchase of goods and services
- What Viel Intemational Transport Joint Associated company
Venture Compiny
= Domg Do Marine J5C Associated company
= Construction Consultation for Maritime Associated company
Building J5C
= Ortental Shipping And Trading J5C Associsted company
= BPS5A Infernationsl Container Services Associsted sompany
Joint Vertore Company
- BR-P5A Infernational Port Co, Lid Assncisted company
- Cai Mep Intermational Termiral Co., Lad Associated company
- WOS00 Agency and Logisties ISC Associated comparty
- WOSCO Trading and Service J3C Associated comparny
- BITC-Dinh Yu Logistics Co., Lid Associzted company
- Cua Lo Port Tugboat and Maritime Associated compary
Sarvice 150
- Korea Express Sai Gon Port Co,,Lid Associated company
= Thi Vai General Port J5C Associsted company
- Da Nang Fort Logistics JSC Associated company
- Da Mang Port Tugbeat ISC Associated company
= Bien Dong Logistics J5C Associated compamy
- Saigon Maritime JSC Assoclatad compesny
- Cai Lan International Contamer Terminal  Associsted company
Co.,Lad
- HPH Logisties ISC Assocuated companmy
= Dy Whon Port 150 Associnted company
= Maritime Industrial Scrvice Joint Stock Associated company

Crwempany

Income of key management personnel

Full nme

br. Le Anh Son
M. Wguyen Conb Tinh

Mr. Do Tien Duc

Mr, Mguyen [Mak Chung

M, Do Hung Duong
Mr. Pham Anh Tuan
Mr, L Quang Trang
Mr. Mpuyen Mgoc Anh

Wir. Luang Dinh Mink
Mz, Fham Thi Whi Ha
Mir. Pham Cao Whue

Chairman

Member of Board of Managpement
and Creperal Disecinr

Member of Board of Management
Member of Board of Management
Member of Micard of Managemont
Deputy General Director

Drppaty Gemsral Director

Depuaty Geneml Dhirector
Appainied on 01 November 2023
Head of Supervision

Member of Supervisory Board
Membese of Supervisory Board

Yoar 2024 Year 2023
YNNI VNI

S0 B0, DD 1.617.624. 004

505 801,333 1B A58 547,257
L7565 484 39535333
S2T1LAZ0.0DD 10.B73.767.300
339436 457 LB4.0T9.835
53,776,585, 78R 2H5T16TH
11.612.704 851 851 6B6.595
2 103,662 643 2ATT.EAL.904
30, 703888 599 [8.481.023.817
106,949 224 -
54,400,000 [ 72400000
B.054.308. 47 4. 738 148,923
3 660,399,703 1343 206,000
TO.897 095 168 T4.400,278.154
BE 152772450 1360715309
- 16957000

154600 186 -
245274400 A0 043,520
552152 527 214.B69.243
.857.210.000 10.09L.870.400
235.761.436 114.169.158
MILT7IT44E098 2490100641082
YD WD

1,436, 1 13,508 I 305463 296
1,427,289,353 1, 435,076,670
1,305 366,516 1,090,282 922

I, 3006 244 516 LO36G0EE 23]
1,266, 520,968 |, 01E500, 419
1,234,966 487 QRT,0ET 356
1,230, 466,487 1,010,387 356
1,200, 769,519 TES02 320
1,195,0213.753 oeR 717,917
Bd3,122,935 745,057,792
R15,500,100 GRZOS7,732
13650385250  10,382,626,131

&7

LW S

ey

i —
B A"y

T



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B09 — DN/HN
Ne. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, For the fiscal year
Dong Da District, Hanoi ended 3171220324

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEDY)
{These nates are an integrad part of aned chowld be read in confunsiien witk the accomparping financial smiemens)

I
37.3

OTHER INFORMATION (CONT'D)
OTHER INFORMATION
According to the provisions of Decree No. 126/2017/ND-CP dated 16 November 2017, of
the Government on the conversion of state-owned enterprises and single-member limited
liahility companies wholly owned by state enterprises into joint-stock companics, at the time
of afficially converting into a joint-stock company, the Corporation is required to finelize
taxes and other obligations payable to the State budget with the Tax Authority and request
the representative agency of the state owner to approve the value of state capital af the time
of conversion into & joint-stock company, settle the procesds from equitization, pay
severance benefits for redundant emplovees, and cover equitization costs. The Corporation
has completed the tax finalization process. For the remaining requirements, the Corporation
has completed the necessary documentation and is submitting it for epproval by the
competent authorities, Therefire, the figures presented in the accompanying consolidated
financial staternents may change after approval from the relevant authoritses.
COMPARATIVE FIGURES
The comparetive figures are figures in the Corporstion’s Audited Consolidated Financial
Statemenis for the fiscal yesr ended 31 December 2023, which have been andited and
retrospectively adjusted at Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company. The specific indicators arc
as follows:
ASSETS Code  Beforcadjustment  Adjustment  After adjostment
VHND Reclassafication VND
CURRENT ASSETS 100 10,965376,076,502 (1,763,134 488)  11,963,612.942,094
Shari-term receivables 13 1,738,069,537,601 (1,763,134.488)  2,733306,403,113
Short-term advences o suppliers 132 T23,652, 104,304 (154,983,000 723497,121,504
(riber short-term receivables 135 T84,083.811,557 (1,608,151,488) TS, 375,660,069
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 00 ISSTLUENSSI3  (271,752723)  1S.571%18.787,190
Long-term assets in progress 40 2.514,612,161,807  (2TL7SL,713)  2.514.340,409,174
Logg-term construction in progress 242 2A755TMITR440  (271,75L703)  2ATSM0L618.717
TOTAL ASSETS i ] 21&?&&1“!5 !i,l!-l:ﬂ‘?ﬁlli ]?.53'5&']‘1!1,1'“
LIABILITIES W00 13,168,059 809,69 153,868,000 12,169,113,677,699
Current liabilities 10 TA17 142, 206057 153, 568000  7417.206,164,057
Short-lerm tade payable 1 | ITEAGLATLEES 103322000  1,072365,793,665
Other cuerent payables 110 [ 414,180,365,311 50,546,000  1,414.230.911,311
EQUITY 400 15,368, 503,806,796 (1,188, 785.211) 15266315051,385
Owners’ equity 410 15,368,503.506,79%6 (2,188,755211) 15366,315051,585
Undistrituted eamings 421 {239, 780,880,851} (Z,18B,735.211)  (241,965,636,061)
- Undlistribeted earmligs 421a  (1A02)094,080,168) (L1%8,755211) (l.404,282,835379)
serurridated fo the prior pear erd
TOTAL RESOURCES 490 ITSATAGRGI6495 (1,004887211) 17,535428,729,254
Hanol, 03 March 2025
Freparer Head of Finance and ~.on10gkzeneral Director
Accounting D:wﬂwe%ﬁ/}__\-\t
4o’ TONG CONG TY N\
=¥ HANG HAI | =
1/“&?/ Luw[/«‘ ViR ]
BTN Y
hx 431-14'35'
Va Thi Thanh Duyen Le Duy Duong ~% 54 -Niguyen Canh Tinh
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VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAMNAM
CORPORATION -JSC I ndependence - Freedom - Happiness

Number: 241/HHVN-TCKT Hanoi, 06 March 2025
Regarding the explanation of exceptions
and retroactive adjustmentsin audited on the
consolidated financial statements for 2024

To:
- State Securities Commission;

- Hanoi Stock Exchange.

1. Company name: Vietham Maritime Corporation — JSC

2. Stock code: MVN

3. Address: No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Ma Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi
4. Phone: 024 35770825 Fax: 024 35770850

Vietnam Nationa Shipping Lines (VIMC) would like to explain the
exception and retroactive adjustment in the audited 2024 Consolidated Financia
Statements as follows:

1. At Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company — A subsidiary of the
Corporation (“Hai Phong Port”)

“As of 31 December 2024, the Company recognized assets related to Berths No. 04 and
No. 05 and the Chua Ve Port container yard under the item "Tangible Fixed Assets' (code
221) on the Consolidated Satement of Finacial Position. These assets had a total historical
cost of VND 279.7 billion and a net carrying amount of VND 142.14 billion. The sources of
funding for these assets are recorded under "Long-term Borrowings and Finance Lease
Liabilities' (code 338) on the Consolidated Statement of Finacial Postion, with a
corresponding value of VND 342.1 billion. These assets belong to Phase |1 of the Hai Phong
Port Renovation and Upgrading Project, which was invested by Ministry of Transport usng
Japanese ODA loans and the Government’s counterpart funding.

At the request of Ministry of Finance, Hai Phong Port has temporarily paid certain
amounts related to the aforementioned project into the Sate Budget, these include:
Depreciation of assets related to Berths No. 04 and No. 05 and the Chua Ve Port container
yard for the period from 2014 to 31 December 2018, totaling VND 44.8 hillion, provisionally
accrued interest expenses on loans amounting to VND 149.3 billion.

In accordance with Resolution No. 71/NQ-CHP dated 12 June 2020 of the Board of
Directors, Hai Phong Port has suspended depreciation and ceased recognizing interest
expenses from 1 January 2020 for assets related to Berths No. 04 and No. 05 and the Chua
Ve Port container yard, pending official approval of the management plan for these assets.
On 8 June 2023, the Company issued Document No. 1674/CHP-TCKT to Ministry of
Transport, proposing the continued assignment of Hai Phong Port to manage and operate
Berths No. 04 and No. 05 and the Chua Ve Port container yard, in line with the provisions of
Document No. 2313/TTg-KTN dated 25 December 2013 issued by the Prime Minister. On 28
September 2023, Ministry of Trangport issued Document No. 10882/BGTVT-TC to Ministry



of Finance for consultation on the draft Decree regulating the management, use, and
exploitation of maritime infrastructure assets (to replace Decree No. 43/2018/ND-CP dated
12 March 2018). In thisdocument, Ministry of Transport proposed adding provisionsto the
transitional clauses of the Decree to ensure that, if the proposal is approved, it would
resolve the management framework for these assets, meaning that Berths No.4 and Berths
No.5 at Chua Ve Port would be handed over to Hai Phong Port for management and
operation (not for lease). On 24 December 2024, the Gover nment Officeissued Notification
No. 569/TB-VPCP regarding the conclusions on the feedback and explanations from
Government Member s concer ning the Decree on the management, use, and expl oitation of
inland waterway infrastructure assets. Accordingly, the Deputy Prime Minister agreed that
the Decree should not include provisons for transitional handling of maritime
infrastructure assets formed from state capital and assigned Ministry of Transport and
Ministry of Finance to urgently report on the handling plan. Upon official approval from
the relevant authorities regarding the management and operation plan for Berths No.4 and
Berths No.5, the Chua Ve Port container yard, and the equipment package, Hai Phong Port
will beresponsible for updating the financial report data. On 27 December 2024, pursuant
to Resolution No. 168/NQ-CHP, the Board of Directors of Company approved the
resumption of depreciation for Berths No.4 and Berths No.5 and the Chua Ve Port
container yard, as proposed by the General Director of Hai Phong Port in Report No.
4882/CHP-TCKT dated 25 December 2024.

As of the issuance date of this audit report, there has been no decision from the state
management authorities regarding the management framework for Berths No.4 and Berths
No.5 and the Chua Ve Port container yard of Hai Phong Port Joint Sock Company.

2 . Besides, the Ministry of Finance also requested to re-examine the equitization of
Hai Phong Port (in the condition that the final settlement documents of the value of Sate
capital at the time of equitization of the Company have not been approved by the relevant
authorities). When there is the official approval of the equitization settlement of the
competent authority about loans and repayment plans, the consolidated financial
statements of Hai Phong Port will be adjusted (if any).

We have not been able to collect the necessary documents to evaluate the impact of
all the above issues on the Corporation's consolidated financial statements (attached)”

Explanation:

The exceptional opinion has been stated in the financial statements of Hai
Phong Port Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation)
since its trangtion to a joint-stock company on 01/07/2014. Therefore, in the
consolidated financia statements of Vietnam Maritime Corporation, the auditing
firm hasissued an exceptional opinion.

Vietnam Maritime Corporation has provided a written explanation to the State
Securities Commission and the Hanoi Stock Exchange regarding the exceptional
opinion of the independent auditing firm on the consolidated financia statements of
the Corporation.

In 2024, Hai Phong Port continues to work with the competent authorities, and
as of thetime of theissuance of the audit report, the resolution plan for assets related



to Pier No. 4, Pier No. 5, Chua Ve Port container yard has not yet been approved.
Therefore, the above-mentioned exceptiona audit opinion still remains.

Thus, thisissueis an objective factor for VIMC and Hai Phong Port.

2. At Bien Dong Shipping Company Limite- A subsidiary of the
Corporation(“Bien Dong”)

“Regarding the difference between the loan principal balance and the loan
payable to Shipbuilding Industry One Member Limited Liability Company

As stated in Note 20 and Note 24 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Satements, Accounting books and independent confirmation letter that we received
regarding the loan and interest expense payable to Vietnam Shipbuilding Finance
Company Limited (“VFC”) of the 1730 TEU V22 Container Ship Project have a difference,
asat 01 January 2024, at USD 28,667,314.77 and USD 59,208,393.37 respectively, as at
31 December 2024, at USD 28,667,314.77 USD and USD 63,541,824.47. The reason is
that Bien Dong has cleared the loan and interest payable to VFC to Bach Dang
Shipbuilding Company Limited (“Bach Dang”) according to the handover minutes signed
on 5 August 2015 with Bach Dang. By other audit procedures, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the balances at the beginning of the year, the
figuresarising during theyear and the ending balances of theseloans and inter est expenses.

Therefore, we were unable to determine whether it is necessary to adjust these items
and the impact of the above issues (if any) on the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Satements (see al so Note 20).

Regarding the recognition of the difference between the principal debt and
interest payable to credit institutions and the amount the Company assumed with
Vietnam Debt and Asset Trading Corporation (DATC)

Before 2017, Bien Dong applied the instructions of Official Letter No. 751/BTC-
TCDN dated 17 September 2015, issued by the Ministry of Finance (Official Letter 751)
regarding the accounting treatment of the difference between the book value of debt and
the assumed debt value with Vietham Debt and Asset Trading Corporation (DATC).
Accordingly, the difference between the amount Bien Dong assumed with DATC and the
principal debt and interest payable to credit institutionswas recorded asan increasein the
Sate capital at Bien Dong.

From 2018 to 2021, Bien Dong changed to apply the regulations of the Vietnamese
Corporate Accounting System, whereby the difference between the amount the Company
owed DATC and the value of principal and interest payable to credit ingtitutions was
recorded in the Income Satement for the year.

From 2022 to 2023, Bien Dong applies the instructions of Circular No. 46/2021/TT-
BTC dated 23 June 2021, Official Dispatch No. 751/BTC-TCDN dated September 17, 2015,
Official Letter No. 5883/BTC-TCDN dated 8 May 2017, and Official Letter No. 1440/BTC-
TCDN dated 8 February 2021, issued by the Ministry of Finance. Accordingly, the
difference between the amount of the debt received by the Company and Vietnam Debt and
Asset Trading Company Limited (DATC) compared to the value of the debt and interest



payableto credit institutions are recorded as an increasein the value of the Sate capital at
Bien Dong.

If Bien Dong consistently applies the regulations of the Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System in recording these amount, then on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position as at 1 January 2024, the item “Differences upon asset revaluation”
(Code 416) decreases and the Item “Undistributed earnings” (Code 421) increases VND
2,104.86 billion and as at 31 December 2024, the Item “Differences upon asset revaluation”
(Code 416)decreases and the Item “Undistributed earnings” (Code 421) increases VND
2,166.26 billion accordingly. ”

Explanation:

- Related to the loan and interest expenses payable to Shipbuilding Finance
Company Limited (VFC) for the 1730 TEU V22 Container Vessel Project. This
loan and interest arise from the financing loan for the 1730 TEU V22 Container
Shipbuilding Project, which has been handed over to the Bach Dang Shipbuilding
Ltd., Co.

Bien Dong Shipping Ltd., Co handed over this project, along with the
principal loan and interest, to Bach Dang from 08/05/2015. However, VFC has
not yet transferred the debt obligation and continues to track the principal and
calculate the interest accruing after 05/08/2015 for Bien Dong Shipping Ltd., Co,
leading to a difference in the principal and interest at the times of the financial
statement preparation mentioned above.

- According to the guidance of the Ministry of Finance in Official Letter No.
751/BTC-TCDN sent to the Vietham Maritime Corporation on September 17,
2015 ("Officia Letter 751"), the difference between the amount of debt received
by the Company and the Viethnam Debt and Asset Trading Company (DATC) and
the principal debt and interest payable to credit institutions should be recognized
asanincreasein the value of the State capital. Thisofficial |etter provides specific
guidance based on the characteristics of the Vietham Maritime Corporation. Bien
Dong Shipping Ltd., Co has applied the guidance from Official Letter 751 to the
principal debt and interest payableto credit institutions arising before 2017. L ater,
the Government issued Decree No. 126/2017/ND-CP on 16/11/2017, about the
transformation of state-owned enterprises and single-member limited liability
companies with 100% state capital into joint-stock companies, and the Ministry
of Finance issued Circular No. 41/2018/TT-BTC on 04/5/2018, guiding Decree
No. 126/2017/ND-CP, replacing previous guiding documents. The newly issued
regulations do not provide guidance on recognizing debt restructuring items.
Therefore, the items uncovered by the guidance will be handled according to the
current accounting regime. Since 2022, the Company has followed the guidance
of Circular No. 46/2021/TT-BTC on 23/6/2021, Officia Letter No. 751/BTC-



TCDN on 17/9/2015, Officia Letter No. 5883 /BTC-TCDN on 08/5/2017,
Official Letter No. 1440/BTC-TCDN on 08/02/2021 from the Ministry of Finance.

The auditing company has not exceptional opinion for the accounting entries
of Bien Dong Shipping Ltd., Co, and only except for inconsistent application of
accounting policies between the years during the privatization phase and the
implementation of the restructuring plan to transition into ajoint-stock company.
The accounting entries of Bien Dong Shipping Ltd., Coisstill in compliance with
the relevant legal regulations.

3. Regarding the retrospective adjustment of certain items on the
consolidated balance sheet for thefiscal year ending at 31/12/2023

On the balance sheet, the column 01/01/2024 in the consolidated financial
statements, certain items have been retrospectively adjusted as follows:

ASSETS Code Before adjustment Adjustment  After adjustment
VND Reclassification VND
CURRENT ASSETS 100 11,965,376,076,582 (1,763,134,488) 11 963,612,942 094
Short-term receiv ables 130 2,735,069,537,601 (1,763,134,488) 2,733.306,403,113
Short-term advances to suppliers 132 T23.652,104 304 (1540830000 T23 407121 304
Other short-term recetvables 134 784,983, 811,557 (1,608,151488) 783 375,660,060
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 15572.087.539.013 (271752723 15.571.815.787.190
Long-term assets in progress 240 2,514,612 160,807  (27L.752.723) 2.514340.400.174
Lonz-term construction in progess 242 2475674372440 (271.7532,723y  2.475402,619.717
TOTAL ASSETS 270 27,537 463,616,495 (2,034,887.211) 27,535428,729,284
LIABILITIES 300 12,168,959,809,699 153,568,000 12,169.113,677,699
Current liabilities 310 T.417.142, 206,057 153,868,000 7.417.296,164,057
Short-term trade pavable 3l 1,172 462 471,665 103 322,000  1,172.565,703 6635
Other current payables jlo 1,414,180,365.311 50,546,000 1.414230.911.311
EQUITY 400 15368,503,806,796 (2,188,755211) 15366,315,051,585
Owners” equity 410  15,368,503,806,796 (2,188,755211) 15,366,315,051,585
Undigributed earnitizs 421 (230.780,880,851) (2,188, 755211y (241,969.636,062)
- Undistribasted aarnings 420a (1,402,004 080,168} (2,188,755211) (1,404 282835379
accusmulatad to the prior vear end
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 27,537 463,616,495 (2,034,887.211) 27,535428,729,2584

Reason for the retrospective adjustment: Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company
—asubsidiary of the Corporation, has made a retrospective adjustment to the data
for the fiscal year ending at 31/12/2023.

Vietnam Maritime Corporation respectfully reports./.

Recipients:
- Asabove;
- Filed: VT, TGD, TCKT, D3.




VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAMNAM
CORPORATION - JSC I ndependence - Freedom - Happiness

Number: 242/HHVN-TCKT Hanoi, 06 March 2025
Regarding Explanation of profit
difference on audited Consolidated
Financia Statementsfor 2024

To: Hanoi Stock Exchange

1. Company name: Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC
2. Stock code: MVN

3. Address: No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Ma Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

4. Phone: 024 35770825 Fax: 024 35770850

5. Explanation of the difference in profit after corporate income tax on the
audited Consolidated Financial Statements for 2024 compared to the same period
in 2023 as follows:

Item Year 2024 (VND) | Year 2023 (VND) | Difference (VND)
1) 2 3 @=02-0

Profit after corporate | ,, oq 893 754 343 | 1.701,819,140.313 | 928,009,614,030
Income tax

The main reasons for the difference are:
- Gross profit from sales and service provision: increased by VND 410 billion

- Financia profit: decreased by VND 167 billion
- Profit (loss) in joint ventures and associates.  increased by 71 billion

- Sales and administrative expenses: increased by VND 298 hillion
- Other profits: increased by VND 1.010 billion
- Corporate income tax: increased by VND 98 billion

Vietnam Maritime Corporation respectfully reports. /.

Recipient:
- As above;
- Save: VT, CEO, TCKT, D3.
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